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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BETRE

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of City University of Hong Kong (the University) set out on pages 74 to 134,

which comprise the consolidated and University statements of financial position as at 30 June 2011, and the consolidated and University
statements of comprehensive income, the consolidated and University statements of changes in funds and the consolidated and University
cash flow statements for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

University’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The University is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and for such internal
control as the University determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 20 of City University of Hong Kong Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the University, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the University as at
30 June 2011 and of their surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

13 October 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEHRER

Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBar) BiaE 2011 2010
Income PN
Government Subventions BB 2 1,670,393 1,591,415
Tuition and Other Fees 28 R HAMWE 3 1,562,118 1,554,784
Interest and Net Investment Return A B R FE & B3R 4 584,729 410,361
Donations and Benefactions B RBEE 5 153,114 62,390
Auxiliary Services 1B PR 7% 6 102,968 101,521
Other Income EHbug A 7 51,439 72,304
I 4124761 3,792,775

Expenditure B 8
Learning and Research HE RHE

Instruction and Research HE R 2,164,565 2,097,703

Library £ 103,132 102,407

Central Computing Facilities R B B RR B 139,866 155,225

Other Academic Services HEMHERE 131,425 123,533
Institutional Support HETE

Management and General BB R —MIEB 276,714 239,461

Premises and Related Expenses RERBEBARAX 514,198 473,049

Student and General Education Services B RHE RS 181,361 163,314

Other Activities H A& & 26,981 39,449

R 3,538,242 3,394,141

Surplus from Operations BERR 586,519 398,634
Finance Costs BB EMA (1,114) (1,120)
Gain on Disposal of Associates Rk NGl 2,144 -
Gain on Partial Disposal of Interests in an Associate & —H & A A E 9 = e - 307
Loss on Disposal of a Subsidiary HE—KBRRERE - (385)
Share of Net Losses of Associates BB L N R FEE (240) (1,953)
Surplus before Taxation W B4 AT & 84 587,309 395,483
Taxation IR 9 (34) (159)
Surplus for the Year rEER 587,275 395,324
Other Comprehensive Income Hh 2 mEW =
Exchange Differences on Translation of MEBRBIRINEEZ

Operations outside Hong Kong PE N =58 4,289 1,368
Changes in Fair Value of Available-for-Sale Securities A {EH & & 52 7 EE MR E 2,946 490
Share of Reserves of Associates JE(REE S N B 2 R 99 309
Reserves Realised upon Disposal of Associates S B N B PR IR A R (563) =
Reserves Realised upon Disposal of a Subsidiary HE B RRMBRNHERE - (19)
Reserves Realised upon Partial Disposal of HE—BE QRIS D ERE

Interests in an Associate Fr& R e & - (27)
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year rEEREMEEKE 00000000 6771 2,121
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year AEEXERREE 594,046 397,445
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mermEBER

Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#&TEt) it aF 2011 2010
Surplus for the year attributable to: EEERBER
The Group RERRE
Deficit in Research Projects Absorbed by HFIEE BEAA
Restricted Fund for Research MEERES 10 (41,269) (77,849)
Surplus Transferred to Other Funds BREREZEMES 11 628,544 472,779
587,275 394,930
Non-Controlling Interests et £ - 394
Surplus for the year AEZRER 587,275 395,324
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to: 2HKEAEBR
The Group REBEME
Deficit in Research Projects Absorbed by HRIE B BEAA
Restricted Fund for Research MEEAES 10 (41,269) (77,849)
Surplus Transferred to Other Funds BBEBEEMES 11 635,315 474,881
594,046 397,032
Non-Controlling Interests EZetll £ - 413
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year AEEEEWNFHATE 594,046 397,445

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma BRI R

Note

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FEITaEr) Kifat 2011 2010
Non-current Assets kREBEE
Property, Plant and Equipment RE - W REE 12 3,282,398 2,788,800
Intangible Assets mREAE 30 34
Investments in Securities BEERE 13 235,291 310,514
Interests in Associates B8 N BIRERS 15 1,309 10,756
Loans Receivable W E R 16 11 11
Other Receivable LA JE UK IR 5K 17 450 =

3,519,489 3,110,115
Current Assets REBEE
Investments in Securities BHILE 13 4,301,373 3,415,761
Loans Receivable EWE TR 16 86,880 83,180
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Others FEUIR IR - TERTIR R R E A 17 184,696 149,442
Tax Recoverable AT Us B £ 3R 36 =
Cash and Bank Deposits R& RIRITIFER 18 757,064 1,200,156

R 5330049 4,848,539
Current Liabilities ik =R
Deferred Income PEIEUA 19 397,790 367,877
Accounts Payable and Accruals IR R ERTE A 20 607,406 490,387
Provision for Employee Benefits EEBAERE 21 390,575 350,507
Tax Payable FER B - 105
Loans and Borrowings BERREE 23 70,113 70,113
. 1465884 1,278,989
Net Current Assets REBEETFE 3,864,165 3,569,550
Total Assets less Current Liabilities BEAERRBEE 7,383,654 6,679,665
Non-current Liabilities kRBAE
Deferred Income REWA 19 50 59
Provision for Employee Benefits B ERAEE 21 25,469 21,504
Loans and Borrowings BERREE 23 463,309 496,182
488,828 517,745

Deferred Capital Funds ETEEXRES 24 2,095,385 1,956,511
Net Assets EEFE 4,799,441 4,205,409
Represented by: BEERR :
Restricted Fund for Research MEERES 10 272,227 294,971
Other Funds HihH e 11 4,527,214 3,910,438
Total Funds HewmE 4,799,441 4,205,409
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 13 October 2011.
REGH2011F 108138 A EE -
Leung Chun-ying, GBM, GBS, JP, Chairman of the Council Vincent Chow Wing-shing, BBS, JP, Treasurer
PIRFE - GBM * GBS JP* WEBECEE RXKE - BBS ' JP- RIE
Way Kuo, President Simon Tang Siu-Kee, Director of Finance
B RE BNE - VBRER

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
SEEEEEEmR

Attnbutable to the Group
%‘F E N %L Eﬁ
General
and Self-
Restricted Development ~ Matching ~ Unrealised ~ financing ~ Donations Non- Non-
Fundfor ~ Reserve Grant Investment  Activities and  Operating controlling
Research Fund Scheme Reserve Fund Benefactions  Reserves  Sub-total  Interests Total
(Note 10) ~ (Note 1) (Note 1 ]]% (Note 1) (Note 11)  (Note 11)  (Note 11)
— [
W% REE  EM2 AREy GERE BR fuE g )
o SRES  HEER ;8 REEE BREE  RBE  HARE gt E# @t
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A F/%7T5t) (WiFo)  (Fatnn)  (BE0) (B (R (BN ()
Balance at 1 July 2009 2009781 24 360,800 520,585 141,836 (552) 2,435,553 344,216 5939 33808377 - 3808377
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year AEER/(BR) (77849) 36937 (55840) - 49958 41,724 - 394930 394 395324
Other Comprehensive Income Et2EbE - = = 498 = = 1,604 2,102 19 2,121
Tod Compreenshelncone 2EHEEE CIHS) B (SH0) 4B 4908 N4 6 BN 413 3745
Disposal of a Subsidiary HE-HEAR - - - - - - - - 413) 413)
Inter-Fund Transfers EeEH 12,020 - (29) - (B945) (3,046 = = = =
Balance at 30 June 2010 201056 A30R £ 294,971 557,522 85,967 (54) 2876566 382,894 7543 4,205,409 - 4205409
Balance at 1 July 2010 201057810 2&8 294971 557,522 85,967 (54) 2876566 382,894 7543 4,205,409 - 4,205,409
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year AEERR/ (BR) (41269)  (3136) 41482 - 450203 140,035 - 581275 - 581275
Other Comprehensive Income Hip2ENE - - - 2,957 - - 3,814 6,771 - 6,771
Total Comprehensive Income PENEEE (4269)  (3136) 4144 2957 450203 140035 3814 594046 - 594046
Share of an Associate’s Equity-settled  [Ef AR AL ERAE
Share Based Payments MH& UEGPARE S - - - - - - (14) (14) - (14)
Inter-Fund Transfers EeER 18,525 - (584) - (8308)  (43n3) - - - -
Balance at 30 June 2011 2011F6A30R 48 272,221 554,386 121,565 2903 3,318,461 518,556 11,343 4,799,441 - 4,799,441

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
AEBREIMNER

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#BTET) 2011 2010
Operating Activities EEED

Surplus before Taxation BR % AT B B4 587,309 395,483
Adjustments for: HEIER

Interest Income FL2 WA (109,710) (100,225)

Dividend Income e B A (56,853) (36,728)

Realised Gains on Investments in Securities BHEENDER W= (24,613) (119,288)

Unrealised Gains on Investments in Securities FHEERENREER WSS (393,553) (154,120)

Finance Costs HBER 1,114 1,120

Gain on Disposal of Associates S A QR (2,144) =

Loss on Disposal of a Subsidiary B E— KB AR E R - 385

Gain on Partial Disposal of Interests in an Associate & — B4 A B O EZ W - (307)

Share of Net Losses of Associates JE L& A R R 1E 240 1,953

Grants Transferred from Deferred Capital Funds HERTEEARES 2 BN (253,386) (221,837)

Amortisation and Depreciation of Property, R - R KRB

Plant and Equipment RiTE 265,635 239,495

Gain on Disposal of Plant and Equipment oS MR R R ) W 2 (62) (403)

Amortisation of Intangible Assets A B R 4 4

Losses/(Gains) on Foreign Exchange FEH R/ () 646 (399)
Operating Surplus before Changes in EEESEHAZ

Working Capital EERR 14,627 5,133
Increase in Accounts Receivable, MR ER « TEATIRR R

Prepayments and Others HoAth,z 380 (31,844) (16,617)
Increase in Staff Loans Receivable FEYE: B B2 3E (3,700) (3,010)
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Income EFEUA Z 0/ () 29,904 (31,815)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable FERIRZEESER 2

and Accruals g/ ) 63,202 (201,309)
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits 12 BRI 2 3 44,033 20,463
Cash Generated from/(Used in) EEFEEMEL/(ER)

Operating Activities ZRE 116,222 (227,155)
Hong Kong Profits Tax Paid BEXNEAFER (96) (43)
China Enterprise Income Tax Paid TR ERERETH (79) (43)
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) EETHMEL/ (ER)2

Operating Activities HEFE 116,047 (227,241)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#&TEt) I/;\;%t; 2011 2010
Investing Activities REEH
Proceeds from Redemption and Sale of BRI REEFFRE

Investments in Securities FriS30AE 169,172 227,609
Payments for Purchase of Investments in Securities B A B AL E (552,182) (587,114)
Dividends and Interest Income Received Bz RS RFIEHA 164,105 131,824
Decrease/(Increase) in Time Deposits with Maturity ZEA%R Bz EBHTFR

over Three Months 2R/ () 133,595 (510,335)
Payments for Additions to Property, TREERE - e

Plant and Equipment S (701,490) (553,076)
Proceeds from Disposal of Plant and Equipment HERER KRR BATS KA 126 422
Net cash outflow on disposal of a Subsidiary HE—WBRARZHESRLFE 30 - (762)
Proceeds from Disposal of Associates SR N R S RIE 2,857 =
Proceeds from Partial Disposal of Interests HE—BE QRO ER

in an Associate FR18 38 - 2,407
Loans Advanced to Associates e AR RN ER - (8)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities REZBAEAZRESFHE (783,817) (1,289,033)
Financing Activities REED
Net Grants and Donations Received for Additions REEERE - a3 R

to Property, Plant and Equipment Bz FBRRBR 392,260 295,764
Drawdown of Bank Loans REURTTE R - 1,500
Repayment of Government Loans EEBFER (32,873) (32,873)
Interest Paid for Loans and Borrowings ENERREEFRE (1,114) (1,120)
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities MEEEMELEZESTHE 358,273 263,271
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents ReERASEEY2FRD (309,497) (1,253,003)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning BeRBELEEYZ

of the Year FUEE 678,259 1,931,262
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End ReRESEENZ

of the Year FRETF 18 368,762 678,259

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
R

Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFBar) BiaE 2011 2010
Income PN
Government Subventions BT 48 3R 2 1,669,192 1,590,260
Tuition and Other Fees SERHEMKE 3 1,231,388 1,243,600
Interest and Net Investment Return B KRR E B 4 561,965 391,385
Donations and Benefactions BRI IBE 5 152,763 62,342
Auxiliary Services 1B PR 7% 6 99,308 94,843
Other Income HAob WA 7 32,328 43,280
N 3,746,944 3,425,710
Expenditure B 8
Learning and Research HE RHE
Instruction and Research HEB K F 2,062,002 1,994,734
Library £ 100,334 99,448
Central Computing Facilities R E PR 132,872 147,826
Other Academic Services HMHERE 125,936 117,615
Institutional Support HETE
Management and General EEN—MIEB 244,846 207,793
Premises and Related Expenses RERBEBAAX 434,491 392,031
Student and General Education Services BENHE RS 175,516 156,896
Other Activities HAth)EE 4,295 4,640
. 3,280,292 3,120,983
Surplus from Operations EIERR 466,652 304,727
Finance Costs BB E A (1,114) (1,120)
Surplus before Taxation BR % AT Z B 465,538 303,607
Taxation g 9 (20) (101)
Surplus and Total Comprehensive Income TEFEEBR
for the Year ZEKE 465,518 303,506
Represented by: EERR :
Deficit in Research Projects Absorbed by 7E1E B BEAA
Restricted Fund for Research MEERAES 10 (41,269) (76,045)
Surplus Transferred to Other Funds BRERTHMES 11 506,787 379,551
465,518 303,506

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB AR 2R

Note

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#&TEt) it aF 2011 2010
Non-current Assets RBEE
Property, Plant and Equipment e s REE 12 3,185,122 2,706,448
Investments in Securities BHKE 13 225,588 309,506
Investments in Subsidiaries (i PNGIE = 14 134,906 131,987
Loans Receivable W E R 16 19,951 13,426

3,565,567 3,161,367
Current Assets REBEE
Investments in Securities BHEKRE 13 4,292,051 3,407,550
Loans Receivable W E R 16 91,356 87,656
Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Others FEUIR R~ TERTIR R R E A 17 179,058 140,900
Cash and Bank Deposits W& RRITFR 18 690,684 1,122,208

R 5253149 4,758,314
Current Liabilities REBEE
Deferred Income TEIE U A 19 389,301 362,032
Accounts Payable and Accruals FEFTIRR R BT E A 20 1,333,946 1,077,964
Provision for Employee Benefits BB @FIEE 21 385,794 345,436
Tax Payable FER R - 58
Loans and Borrowings BERREE 23 70,113 70,113
.. 2179154 1,855,603
Net Current Assets REBEEFE 3,073,995 2,902,711
Total Assets less Current Liabilities EEHABERABARE 6,639,562 6,064,078
Non-current Liabilities FRBEMSE
Provision for Employee Benefits B ERAEE 21 25,469 21,504
Loans and Borrowings BERREE 23 463,309 496,182
488,778 517,686

Deferred Capital Funds EEEERES 24 2,095,385 1,956,511
Net Assets EEFE 4,055,399 3,589,881
Represented by: ELRE :
Restricted Fund for Research MREAES 10 272,130 294,874
Other Funds HibH e 11 3,783,269 3,295,007
Total Funds HeBE 4,055,399 3,589,881
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 13 October 2011.
REER2011F10A 138 EFAIEE -
Leung Chun-ying, GBM, GBS, JP, Chairman of the Council Vincent Chow Wing-shing, BBS, JP, Treasurer
RIRHE - GBM * GBS ' JP REGEE KM+ BBS * JP A&
Way Kuo, President Simon Tang Siu-Kee, Director of Finance
B AR = R MBEER

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
ESWBHRE

General
and Self-

Restricted  Development Matching financing Donations

Fund for Reserve Grant Activities and
Research Fund Scheme Fund  Benefactions Total

(Note 10) (Note 11) (Note 1 ji_f (Note 11) (Note 11)

—h fic %
% RER Gk BEZE B .

o ERES REES g BRES LB Bt

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KF#ETat) (Htiz10) (Hix11) (K1) (Kfztn) (Hix11)
Balance at 1 July 2009 2009F7A1R 2 &8 358,899 520,644 141,836 1,920,780 344,216 3,286,375
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year A% [E 2K (76,045) 36,937 (55,840) 356,730 41,724 303,506
Inter-Fund Transfers Hp®El 12,020 - (29) (8,945) (3,046) =
Balance at 30 June 2010 201066 A30H &8t 294,874 557,581 85,967 2,268,565 382,894 3,589,881
Balance at 1July 2010 20106 7R 10 2 &8 294,874 557,581 85,967 2,268,565 382,894 3,589,881
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year ~ AFE 2 E M (41,269) (3,136) 41,442 328,446 140,035 465,518
Inter-Fund Transfers EoER 18,525 - (5,844) (8,308) (4,373) -
Balance at 30 June 2011 2011E6A308 &4 272,130 554,445 121,565 2,588,703 518,556 4,055,399

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BEREBR

Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#&TEt) it aF 2011 2010
Operating Activities BETED
Surplus before Taxation MR AR A & B 465,538 303,607
Adjustments for: FEIERR -

Interest Income FL2WA (87,829) (81,249)

Dividend Income iR 2 A (56,853) (36,728)

Realised Gains on Investments in Securities BHERENDER W (24,650) (119,288)

Unrealised Gains on Investments in Securities BHERENRER W= (392,633) (154,120)

Finance Costs &M 1,114 1,120

Written back of Impairment Losses on HIREM B A RRNRERSE

Investments in Subsidiaries 7 o) (2,919) (1,077)
Grants Transferred from Deferred Capital Funds BEEREERES 2B (253,386) (221,837)
Amortisation and Depreciation of Property, e - W Rkt 2 8

Plant and Equipment RiTE 262,352 237,432

Gains on Disposal of Plant and Equipment LEHEE KRR EH R E (47) (403)

Losses/(Gains) on Foreign Exchange [E 5 518/ (Uas) 380 (850)
Operating Deficit before Changes in EEESBEAIZ

Working Capital EERE (88,933) (73,393)
Increase in Accounts Receivable, FEMIR R - TERIRFR KR

Prepayments and Others Hfih Z 340 (7,335) (13,057)
Increase in Staff Loans Receivable FEWE B B K2 10 (3,700) (3,010)
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Income EEMWA Z A0/ CRd) 27,269 (31,774)
Net Increase in Amounts Due to Subsidiaries FETB B A B 3RI8 2 F 3 N 139,222 94,521
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable EAERRRETERZ

and Accruals #n/ CRd) 67,331 (202,335)
Increase in Provision for Employee Benefits 1B BAa A a2 18 44,323 20,365
Cash Generated from/(Used in) EEEBREL/ (FEA)

Operating Activities ZBEE 178,177 (208,683)
China Enterprise Income Tax Paid BB MR (78) (43)
Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) EEERBRELE/ (FR)Z

Operating Activities HEFE 178,099 (208,726)
Investing Activities REEE
Proceeds from Redemption and Sale of EERHEZRLFEE

Investments in Securities Fr8 I8 168,502 227,609
Payments for Purchase of Investments in Securities YHBABLFRE (552,182) (587,114)
Dividends and Interest Income Received Bl BB kA B A 142,225 112,848
Decrease/(Increase) in Time Deposits with Maturity — A% TR

over Three Months 2/ (1) 133,595 (510,335)
Payments for Additions to Property, T ERE - #ER

Plant and Equipment K& 1 (689,231) (533,826)
Proceeds from Disposal of Plant and Equipment S Es KR BTS2 5RE 1m 422
Loan to a Subsidiary BHENB A RMNER (11,000) =
On-lending Loan Repaid from a Subsidiary MEBAREEEEER 4,475 4,476
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities REZBAERAZRSEHE (803,505) (1,285,920)
Financing Activities RMEEE
Net Grants and Donations Received for Additionsto ~ FA{EIZER & -« #E2 LR E

Property, Plant and Equipment B F R R 361,464 295,764
Drawdown of Bank Loans RERITE R - 1,500
Repayment of Government Loan BEBNER (32,873) (32,873)
Interest Paid for Loans and Borrowings IHERREERS (1,114) (1,120)
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities METBRMEE2RLTFE 327,477 263,271
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents RERESEBYZFRD (297,929) (1,231,375)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning ReRFELEEYZ

of the Year FOEF 600,311 1,831,686
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End ReRALEEY2

of the Year FREE 18 302,382 600,311

The notes on pages 84 to 134 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R 2R P

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

84

Significant Accounting Policies

FTESHEE

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the University and its subsidiaries
(collectively the Group) is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the University. All HKFRS developments have no material impact on the Group’s and the
University’s financial statements.

The Group and the University have not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period (see note 32).

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in the
accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the Group and the University to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements and estimates
are discussed in note 31.

BREH

APBHRREERELSAMASRONMAERN(EEMBREER) (FEMBRE L) - BEMBERNELEE
FBmELER  (FEEGER) (FEGHER) R(RB) REEAREARUNAERE - UTEABREMBAR (S
ARBER)RANTIEGHHRRME -

BEGTMAGEEM IR ASEH BRI ER R AIREREFRANFITRBEREEINEEMBREEL - ZEBRBYBR
SREAMNBRCEHABERRABAY AT S MR BRRERNERTE

RBERIWRIBRPRME AN AS MM AR RS LR k28 (RHF32) -
MBRMROBRELE
B T ATl ) & SRR ON - NI ISR R AR L B AN E B AR B A o

REBEPADBERUTABEBREERNMBHRREFELHSHABRER  UREE - BF  BANMTHO®RSE BE
BREENFE - A MER - SLGAMEERKERBACTERNEARESEBER THRRR/AENSAEMEARIELHLY -
HERBR TREEBIRBREMECNNSAEER B ENRMERMELABOER - BRAERATEEHIRMEHRE -

BLMGFAABRRSFELETR - MRS EFNEITEZERL —8E  EPEESEZMHENER - MREFTHE M
ARBEGEZE - AEFLETHRAMARRIE T AR

EREEERBTEMBREERNR  HUBRRRGEHABEAZEMELOHERIMEIANFH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

(@

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
FESTBRER @)

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate financial statements of the Group made up to the end of the reporting period;
and include the Group’s interest in associates on the basis set out in note 1(e) below. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensvie Income from the date of their acquisition or to the
date of disposal, as appropriate. All significant transactions and balances between the University and its subsidiaries are eliminated
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity
interests that are not owned by the University, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, are presented in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Changes in Funds, separately from fund balances of the Group. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group for the year are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as an
allocation of the surplus or deficit for the year between non-controlling interests and different sources of University’s funds.

(d) Subsidiaries

(9

A subsidiary is an entity controlled, directly or indirectly, by the University. Control exists when the University has the power,

directly or indirectly, to govern their financial and operating policies, so as to obtain benefits from their activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account. Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. In the University’s Statement of Financial Position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1())).

REEE

RAVBRIEOBASERBBELETANMBEER  WES1@BARENABEBREBLDRINESTCAEER - 1F
EBARHEZMBARMNES NKBERESAEHERL B AFRA2ENRR - RBRMBARZEMMBEEARZS MG
B ERBG AU B RAFLHE -

REE RN RR TN IR ABE BB AR ERRMEEANREMGINBAREEFEND - BLERELSY
BRARARGAESHEBHRD  TEABERNESERD IR - FFEHREMEARERAFEXENESELRA S
EERAAFFEN RS R TRORBES RS EAFERBAEIRT AR -

(d) B2 =)

MBARIREARBEEREEZEFNAR - EXEEREXAFMEEINE QR MM B REEBR - WU LELEE T EIG
e REEANEE BREUTENEERERATGHEGENZBERE - ABERBNHE A RINKRE B E MG A S
EERAMRL HESAMBHRRTEATE - HMBERANKRERERKAREREBRERERBNTBMRREKP IR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 55 S kBT R

1

(e)

(e)

86

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
TESHBER @)

Associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group or the University has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the Consolidated Financial Statements under the equity method and is initially
recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets. The
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income reflects the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax results of the associates
for the year, including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the investment in associates recognised for the year (see note 1())).

When the Group'’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group's interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in associates except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred, in which
case they are recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

BE QT
BEANRKEABRERAARTNHAREEALE )  EFREHABARHRTIENER  FBEAEAYENBES

REERRMRE SRBEREAL ARV B RE - WA EARARAR - RERABEREZBE R EFEECANBROEIIE
HE - GEEEANSRRREABBEMEBREQRANBBREOFARRERE  BREANFERIBNEBERRNRE
B R R E 1R (R EE1G))

BEADERBYUEE QR AENBRBEBBEMENERE  RBERAENERESRIET XA THBREINEE BN
ABERBBITECIEEET - IRBERFELA KRR - gt T - RERBAER LR RMEHOERS NIRBETR
AERENEHSE  ARED LERABRRBEREQARREFE - HoNRBRERE
AEBEHRBENF AR FAEENRERBLS  HRABEENBE QR MENERL REE - BEROKREREREATRD
BREAERRAE MELRBEREREGARELGRS EERERAER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 SR 2R B

1

(f)

()

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

FESTTBER @

Investments in Securities

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than investments in subsidiaries and associates) are initially stated at cost, which is their
transaction price unless fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include only data from

observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated below. These investments are subsequenty
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

(i) Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred. At the end of each reporting period, the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(i) Dated debt securities that the Group has the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at amortised cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(j)).

(iii) Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and which fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

(iv) Other investments in securities are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period, the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised directly in Other Funds, except for impairment losses (see note 1(j))
and, in the case of monetary items such as debt securities, foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised directly in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Where these investments are interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. When these investments are derecognised, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognised directly in Other Funds is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchasing/selling the investments, or the investments expire.

"HHRE

BAlEAEERDEASEMAAEATEEMN EEHIABEREUBETSNEE) BB RBROHEBHRE (B Q 5 R
BRAMBRERIN DB TIRAA  ERZXZERIIK - B TXAHSEAEN  KABBRLEZZKA - ERILFRERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 55 S kBT R

1

(9

~

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

FESHEER @)

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment of the Group are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(j)), including:

— interest in leasehold land held for own use under operating leases;

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land, where the fair value of the building could be measured separately
from the fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease; and

—  other items of plant and equipment

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of other
items of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

The fair values of donations relating to property, plant and equipment at the time of receipt are deemed as the costs of the
related assets.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognised and put into operation is added
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard
of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditure, such as repairs and maintenance,

is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
on the date of retirement or disposal.

(9) & - HBRERME
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
FESTHR@)
Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

~

(9

— Interest in leasehold land held for own use under operating leases is amortised over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or
50 years.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, but no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

—  Building Installation Services are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, but no
more than 20 years after the date of completion where the assets are situated.

—  Leasehold Improvements the shorter of unexpired terms of the leases and 5 years
— Plant and Equipment 4 years
—  Computer Equipment 4 years
—  Furniture and Fittings 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction and is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Construction in progress is reclassified to buildings situated on leasehold land when completed and ready for use.

() B&E ~ HEE R (@)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BE SRR B o

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
TESHBER @)

(h) Intangible Assets
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and understanding,
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or
process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the intention to complete development.
The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.

Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful lives are other than indefinite) and impairment losses (see note 1(j)). Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives unless such lives are indefinite. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Capitalised Development Costs 5 years
—  Film Rights 4 years

Subsequent expenditure on an intangible asset after its purchase or its completion is recognised as an expense when it is incurred
unless it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed
standard of performance and this expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. If these conditions are met, the
subsequent expenditure is added to the cost of the intangible asset and amortised accordingly.

(h) BLEE
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- BEREARERAK E
- EXWRE 4F

EBABVEEXBVAEZKNREENRXHAEELRER AN - RIFELRASXE RS EEME LA RREE RSB R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 SR 2R B

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
FESTBRER @)

(i) Leased Assets
An arrangement comprising a transaction or a series of transactions is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of leased assets
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases.

(ii) Assets held for use in operating leases
Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases, the assets are included in the Statement of Financial Position according
to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the Group’s depreciation policy, as set out in note 1(g).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note 1(j). Revenue arising from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with the Group’s revenue recognition policy, as set out in note 1(p).

(iii) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BE SRR B o

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
TESHBER @)

() Impairment of Assets

(@

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost
or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment, that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; and

- asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial asset and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity securities are not reversed.

For accounts receivable and other financial assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets).

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 5 SR 2R B

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

SRR #)

(j) Impairment of Assets (continued)

(0]

(ii)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables (continued)

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in the Other Funds is removed from the
Other Funds and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment

and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Impairment losses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised
directly in the Other Funds.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occuring after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries and associates

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 55 S kBT R

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
TESHBER @)

(j) Impairment of Assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year
in which the reversals are recognised.

(k) Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see note 1(j)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts (see note 1())).

(I) Interest-bearing Borrowings
Interest bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
FTESHEER @)

(m) Accounts Payable
Accounts payable are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

~

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as

a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provision are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

(o

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
which existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BE SRR B o

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

BETEE@

(p) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and expenditure, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income as follows:

(i) Government subventions
Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position initially as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants with specific
purposes are recognised as revenue in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants without a specific purpose attached are recognised as revenue on an accrual basis.

Recurrent grants and earmarked grants for specific purposes spent on capital expenditure are initially recorded as Deferred Capital
Funds and recognised as income over the useful lives of the related assets when they are put into use, to the extent of the related
depreciation expenses incurred for the period.

(ii) Tuition and other fees
Tuition and other fees are recognised on an accrual basis and unearned fees are treated as deferred income.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(iv) Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(v) Donations
Donations for general purpose are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the Group becomes entitled to the
donations and it is probable that they will be received, which is generally upon receipt of cash. Donations for specific purposes are
initially recognised as deferred income when received. They are recognised as income when the related expenditure is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
FESHEXR @
(p) Revenue Recognition (continued)
(vi) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(vii) Service income
Service income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the related services are rendered.

(q) Employee Benefits
(i) Salaries, paid annual leave and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group.

(i) Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans, including Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
as incurred.

(i) Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminating employment
or to providing benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility
of withdrawal.

(r) Income Tax
Income tax for the year comprises current tax which is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S BE SRR B o

(s)

(t)

(s)

(t)

98

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
TESHBER @)

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at
fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rates for the year.
Statement of Financial Position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in reserves which
relate to that operation outside Hong Kong is included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

Related Parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;
(ili) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or a close family member of such an individual, or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant influence
of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual
in their dealings with the entity.

eI E
FEERANIINER IR S EBNERBE LSBT - WINEBBENHNEEEERARNRLEANERBESET - ELBERA
2HEWMEREIE °

MONEIRBE LA ENFEREERAE  DEXZAMMNEXRGBE - DOUNESEMRAREBIIRNIEEREERAE -
ARAABEETE ANEXRBRE -

EBEHRBEERENOTHERREABT - MBORRIE R ARG E ANERRE BT - FEAENZBEAMR
ERBEE -

EHEFERINEER  ERFBEANCEREZTERNEERRNRTELER AT ELENRNAEIERBEENR °
A Bt

RAPBRERME - REERNBEBA LR

() RATRERIMEZRNASEBIBABEBNUBEREERKAGEATE ) KU ARBEBE XREHRE

(i) REBBERZALTTHEOZES

(i) ZATRARBERNBEQRRAERR]  MABBEREP —UAEE

(iv) ZFATAARBERIZEEFHOKE  AEBEBVNKEKE %fé%%@)\ﬁ’ﬁ H - HREGHREATENER
V) RALALBOAREATHRBEEZEDNORER S  KEZFEANZG - HEEHHERAZENER %

(Vi) RALTR—HERAKBFEE - MK EARPERNABER E’JBEH?‘/\:!:MEEE?‘FUF@&
BEANBEERZNNREKXERERASERBNZIFINAIRTEZBAARZZEAZENREKXS -

U>

Financial Statements City University of Hong Kong Annual Report 2010-2011



2 Government Subventions

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

BT
The Group The University
RNEER RE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETEr) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Subventions from University Grants REREEHEZES
Committee (UGC) (BEE)BR
Block Grants and Supplementary Grants LS S INE TN SN 1,319,768 1,311,882 1,319,768 1,311,882
Supplementary Grants for Salary Revision 7 B 8 B2 4k B B R (7,573) (17,844) (7,573) (17,844)
1,312,195 1,294,038 1,312,195 1,294,038
Earmarked Research Grants REMREBER 86,606 100,461 86,606 100,461
Other Earmarked Grants EL At 7 T AR
Home Financing Scheme &R & BhEt &l 25,565 43,101 25,565 43,101
Housing-related Benefits other than Hih SRR FIE
Home Financing Scheme Z2HEB® 13,884 12,117 13,884 12,117
Restructuring and Collaboration Fund HHEEBIEREDS 61 1,997 61 1,997
Promoting Outcome-based Approaches SRR ARHEE
in Student Learning BB A 1,111 2,490 1,111 2,490
Upgrading of Language Teaching and RABXHER
Learning Facilities =i 82 132 82 132
Development of Normative 4-year BRENFHIELEZL
Undergraduate Programmes B RE 29,944 24,614 29,944 24,614
Knowledge Transfer Fund MBERZHHEY 5,486 1,557 5,486 1,557
Matching Grant for Internationalising 24
the Student Population [REaE=%n 789 707 789 707
oo.78922 86,715 76922 86,715
Matching Grants Eswpe 0 47,444 - 47444 =
Rates and Government Rent Refund REEZMREALE 23,681 23,040 23,285 22,654
Capital Grants and EART BB RBGE -
AA&I Block g - KEER
Allocatons mETERAR 85040 56932 85040 56932
1,631,888 1,561,186 1,631,492 1,560,800
Grants from Government Agencies 3R B H BT RS R R 38,505 30,229 37,700 29,460
1,670,393 1,591,415 1,669,192 1,590,260
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 55 S kBT R

3 Tuition and Other Fees

BERHMKE
The Group The University
RNERR N
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
UGC-funded Programmes HEGEYRE
Tuition 2% 436,751 422,335 436,751 422,335
Other Fees Hipig & 9,218 9,360 9,218 9,360
Non-UGC-funded Programmes IHEGEBRE
Tuition 2% 1,103,468 1,109,893 775,904 801,043
Other Fees Hipg & 12,681 13,196 9,515 10,862
1,562,118 1,554,784 1,231,388 1,243,600
4 Interest and Net Investment Return
FIERFREEBR
The Group The University
AEEE N
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFETat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Interest Income FEWA 109,710 100,225 87,829 81,249
Dividend Income AR E A 56,853 36,728 56,853 36,728
Realised Gains on Investments in Securities ~ BEHREHNE BRI 24,613 119,288 24,650 119,288
Unrealised Gains on Investments in Securities &5 R4 8K B IR W5 393,553 154,120 392,633 154,120
584,729 410,361 561,965 391,385
5 Donations and Benefactions
BREBg
The Group The University
N K&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAF&Tat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Capital Projects HATRR 4,966 4,980 4,966 4,980
Scholarships, Prizes and Bursaries REe  RNERYPESE 15,851 20,757 15,851 20,757
Research Activities i) 3,211 4,246 3,211 4,246
University Development and Others RNEBEEREAM 129,086 32,407 128,735 32,359
153,114 62,390 152,763 62,342
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

6 Auxiliary Services

18 PR
The Group The University
RNEER AE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETEr) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Rental Income el A 29,454 24,828 29,003 25,590
Residence Halls B4ES 45,744 45,006 45,744 45,006
Rental Contributions from Staff HEBEEERES 11,201 11,571 11,017 11,363
Catering Services fER RS 3,863 3,445 3,863 3,445
University Press KE Rt 1,429 1,269 1,429 1,269
Others EAh 11,277 15,402 8,252 8,170
102,968 101,521 99,308 94,843
7 Other Income
Hb g A
The Group The University
AN RE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETEt) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Service Income R 754 A 38,759 56,541 17,595 21,445
Contract Research BHE 4,350 1,992 4,350 1,992
Miscellaneous FEIE 8,330 13,771 10,383 19,843
51,439 72,304 32,328 43,280

FEBHMAL 2010-2011 3§ #g®= 101



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 55 S kBT R

8 Expenditure
53

(a) Analysis of Expenditure

BT

The Group KZ#gE

2011
Staff Costs Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses  and Others Total
258 B 3 .
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) KAa#| EiBRX MERHEM HEt
Learning and Research HERMR
Instruction and Research HE R 1,624,742 397,346 142,477 2,164,565
Library 3 45,772 55,047 2,313 103,132
Central Computing Facilities R EBRER 70,792 27,994 41,080 139,866
Other Academic Services H 2R 90,491 36,424 4,510 131,425
1,831,797 516,811 190,380 2,538,988
Institutional Support HEXE
Management and General BEER—MRIER 222,305 51,109 3,300 276,714
Premises and Related Expenses RERBAREZ 86,920 275,905 151,373 514,198
Student and General Education Services B RHERY 58,938 120,953 1,470 181,361
Other Activities H A& 8 3,444 21,975 1,562 26,981
371,607 469,942 157,705 999,254
Total Expenditure W 2,203,404 986,753 348,085 3,538,242
2010
Staff Costs Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses  and Others Total
R B 3 -
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) Kia#| EiERX MERHEM 5T
Learning and Research BERME
Instruction and Research HERME 1,604,371 385,473 107,859 2,097,703
Library B 47,614 51,801 2,992 102,407
Central Computing Facilities AR E R 68,425 25,620 61,180 155,225
Other Academic Services H 2R 86,725 29,589 7,219 123,533
1,807,135 492,483 179,250 2,478,868
Institutional Support HEXE
Management and General BER—MKIER 195,396 40,595 3,470 239,461
Premises and Related Expenses RERBARI 83,998 249,122 139,929 473,049
Student and General Education Services B4 RHBE RS 56,790 104,947 1,577 163,314
Other Activities H )R & 7,005 31,767 677 39,449
343,189 426,431 145,653 915,273
Total Expenditure BEx 2,150,324 918,914 324,903 3,394,141

102 Financial Statements City University of Hong Kong Annual Report 2010-2011




8 Expenditure (continued)

B (@)

(a) Analysis of Expenditure (continued)

B o @)

The University &£

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

2011
Staff Costs Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses  and Others Total
8 8 H .
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFHETar) KAEF LiEMY WERHEM et
Learning and Research HERMR
Instruction and Research HE R 1,522,997 396,874 142,131 2,062,002
Library £t 45,772 52,249 2,313 100,334
Central Computing Facilities R B R 69,673 22,119 41,080 132,872
Other Academic Services E 2R 86,015 35,411 4,510 125,936
1,724,457 506,653 190,034 2,421,144
Institutional Support HEXE
Management and General EEK—RIEAR 199,955 42,211 2,680 244,846
Premises and Related Expenses REREBARYZ 85,324 245,998 103,169 434,491
Student and General Education Services Z2ERAERY 56,700 117,346 1,470 175,516
Other Activities H )& & 360 2,630 1,305 4,295
342,339 408,185 108,624 859,148
Total Expenditure HWE X 2,066,796 914,838 298,658 3,280,292
2010
Staff Costs Operating Depreciation
and Benefits Expenses  and Others Total
U 8 H N
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XFXETat) &=yl EERE WMEREM #Et
Learning and Research BERME
Instruction and Research BB R 1,501,575 386,121 107,038 1,994,734
Library = 47,614 48,842 2,992 99,448
Central Computing Facilities AR E KRR 67,241 19,405 61,180 147,826
Other Academic Services H A2 RS 81,990 28,406 7,219 117,615
1,698,420 482,774 178,429 2,359,623
Institutional Support HEXE
Management and General EER—MRIEB 174,277 31,221 2,295 207,793
Premises and Related Expenses REREBARE 82,814 219,598 89,619 392,031
Student and General Education Services B4 RRE RS 54,423 100,896 1,577 156,896
Other Activities Hi)E 8 1,869 2,227 544 4,640
313,383 353,942 94,035 761,360
Total Expenditure BB 2,011,803 836,716 272,464 3,120,983
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8 Expenditure (continued)
i < (40

(b) Analysis of Operating Expenses
EERI DM

The Group The University
ANEREE RE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA FETat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Instruction and Research HERTR
Teaching and Instruction B2 230,529 239,718 232,977 241,442
Research Studentships MELEBES 88,328 80,043 88,328 80,043
Research and Teaching Development Projects #155 K& #{ £ 3 R 51 &I 78,489 65,712 75,569 64,636
.. 397,346 385473 396,874 386,121
Library E&E®E 55,047 51,801 52249 48842
Central Computing Facilities RREREE 00000000 27,994 25620 22,119 19,405
Other Academic Services HuymeEry 0 36,424 29,589 35411 28,406
Management and General EER—RER
Publicity SEEHE 10,600 8,006 8,008 5,138
Auditor’s Remuneration 1% BRI & 1,056 846 538 497
Legal and Professional Fees ERERBERE 1,934 1,733 1,793 1,733
General Insurance — MR E 2,001 2,052 2,001 2,052
Office Expenses and Others MAEFAT REM 35,518 27,958 29,871 21,801
L 40595 42211 31,221
Premises and Related Expenses REREHEBAX
Repairs and Maintenance HERRE 35,213 39,445 34,946 39,333
Rental of Leased Premises HEMEHES 58,198 56,936 35,432 34,060
Notional Rent of Surplus Staff Quarters BEEEHES 38,447 19,668 38,447 19,668
Utilities, Cleaning and Security FERKERE -

Services BRERRRE 99,711 94,774 96,071 92,498
Government Rent and Rates BT 30 78 % 2 27,437 26,529 26,927 26,143
Property Insurance MERERE 1,453 1,283 1,242 1,283
Office Expenses and Others MNEFRT REM 15,446 10,487 12,933 6,613

L..275905 249,122 245998 219,598
Student and General Education Services 24 R BERS
Student Support EV3T 97,732 84,800 94,685 81,341
Health Centre {REEA D 10,872 9,942 10,872 9,942
Sport Facilities BRI 4,036 3,199 4,036 3,199
Residence Halls Student Activities BAEESEEE 625 1,115 625 1,115
Cultural and Sports Activities XiEREREE 3,279 2,755 3,279 2,755
Office Expenses and Others WAERIT REAM 4,409 3,136 3,849 2,544
... 120953 104,947 . 117,346 100,896
Other Activities Hupgmp ?_1,_9_7_5 _______ _3_1_,7_§Z _________ 2_ ,_6_3(_) _________ 2 ,_2_2__7_ )
986,753 918,914 914,838 836,716
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

8

(9]

Expenditure (continued)
B % )

Number of Higher Paid Staff
BEAEE AR

The remuneration of staff members exceeding $1,800,000 is within the following bands:

REEEREZNBLI180ETHMNBEAZLT :

The University K&

2011 2010
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A A
$1,800,001 to $1,950,000 18 18
$1,950,001 to $2,100,000 18 13
$2,100,001 to $2,250,000 8 13
$2,250,001 to $2,400,000 11 8
$2,400,001 to $2,550,000 3 3
$2,550,001 to $2,700,000 2 3
$2,700,001 to $2,850,000 2 -
$2,850,001 to $3,000,000 1 -
$3,150,001 to $3,300,000 - 1
> $3,300,000 2 1
65 60
Taxation
AL
Taxation in the Statement of Comprehensvie Income of the Group and University represents:
AEBRBRAE2HBRSRATHRIES :
The Group The University
NEREE N
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AF#ETE) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax BERNSTEE 14 58 - =
China Enterprise Income Tax R ATIS 20 101 20 101
34 159 20 101

The University and two of its subsidiaries, Community College of City University and CityU Professional Services Limited, are exempted
from payment of Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Other subsidiaries of the University in Hong Kong are subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation for mainland China operations is charged at the appropriate prevailing rates of
taxation ruling in mainland China.

No provision for deferred taxation has been made in the financial statements as the effect of all temporary differences is immaterial.
RBEFERBROIZEe8K - REREMBMEAR - DR REERTAZE LB IRAZXEREGRAGF - AAREEER
B -

REBEFBHEMNE DR RIRAFE G5BT BFILA16.5% (20105 : 16.5%) B R EEBNEH - REIAEEBH
HERAPBERITEEHREAE -

REREEZREREEEIKN - T BEM BRI A ERETIERE -
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10 Restricted Fund for Research

MRERES

The Group K22

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFHEITar)

Balance at 1 July 2009 2009F7 A 1H & & 360,800

Transfers from Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income HEAREEHKER (77,849)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note 11) BEeBR(ME) 12,020

Balance at 30 June 2010 201046 A30H & 294,971

Balance at 1 July 2010 2010F7 A1 H & & 294,971

Transfers from Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #HEAREEHKER (41,269)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note 11) BEeBR(ME1) 18,525

Balance at 30 June 2011 201146 A30H & 272,227

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat)

Balance at 1 July 2009 2009%F7 A1 H &8k 358,899

Transfers from Statement of Comprehensive Income RO 2HEWER (76,045)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note 11) BEeBEE(ME11) 12,020

Balance at 30 June 2010 2010F6 A30H & 294,874
Balance at 1 July 2010 2010F7 A1 B #& & 294,874
Transfers from Statement of Comprehensive Income HEQ2HEWER (41,269)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note 11) EouER(MEN) 18,525

Balance at 30 June 2011 20116 4308 &k 272,130

The Restricted Fund for Research represents the unspent funding designated for research purpose. The Restricted Fund for Research is

attributable to the University and its subsidiaries.

MAEAESRIETAERERGERERZES - HREMESBRAZRANB AR -
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11 Other Funds

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

HtEE
The Group K288
Attributable to the Group
GRNAZRE
General
and Self-
Development ~ Matching  Unrealised  financing  Donations Non- Non-
Reserve Grant Investment  Activities and  operating controlling
Fund Scheme Reserve Fund Benefactions  Reserves  Sub-total  Interests Total
—HRER Y KER¢ BELE B FEE SR
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (UFEat) REES BPeiHE RAMRE BEE:  REE BARA g = b
Balance at 1 July 2009 200978 18 &8 520,585 141,836 (552) 2,435,553 344216 5939 3447577 3,441,577
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year Transferred ~ AFEE&#/ (KR
from Consolidated Statement of gRaRA
Comprehensive Income 2ANEE 36937 (55,840) - 449,958 41,724 - 472,779 394 473173
Exchange Differences on Translation of ~ #EEEHIEE
Operations outside Hong Kong LERER - - - = = 1349 1349 19 1,368
Changes in Fair Value of AfFHERS AR EE
Available-for-Sale Securities B¢ - - 490 - - - 490 = 490
Share of Reserves of Associates i N —IZT%?% - = 8 = = 301 309 = 309
Reserves Realised upon Disposal of ﬁ% MERH
a Subsidiary Pﬁ?ﬁﬂ’]f&%ﬁ - - - = = (19) (19) = (19)
Reserves Realised upon Partial Disposal ~ (HEBERAHH
of Interests in an Associate ERfMERNEE - - - = = (27) (27) = (27)
Disposal of a Subsidiary HE-HEBAF - - - - - - - @13) @13)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note 10) E2ER (M0 - (29) - (8945)  (3046) - (12,020 - (12,000)
Balance at 30 June 2010 201096308 &8 557,522 85,967 (54) 2,876,566 382,89 7543 3,910,438 - 3,910,438
Balance at 1 July 2010 2010F7R 18 &5 557,522 85,967 (54) 2,876,566 382,894 7,543 3,910,438 - 3,910,438
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year Transferred ~ AEE RS/ (512)
from Consolidated Statement of #RaGa
Comprehensive Income 2ENEE (3,136) 41442 - 450,203 140,035 - 628544 - 628544
Exchange Differences on Translation of B EA R 2 E
Operations outside Hong Kong LERER - - - - - 4,289 4,289 - 4,289
Changes in Fair Value of e EES
Available-for-Sale Securities DABENHE - - 2,946 - - - 2,946 - 2,946
Share of Reserves of Associates B E N 2 - - 14 - - (@2) 99 - 99
Reserves Realised upon Disposal ﬁ ERENF
of Associates FERNRE - - (130) - - (433) (563) - (563)
Share of an Associate’s Equity-settled EREBENRNERLEE
Share-based Payments LS CPARE:S - - - - - (14) (14) - (14)
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note 10) HEBE(M10) - (5,844) - (8308)  (4373) - (18525) - (18525)
Balance at 30 June 2011 011E6A308 £5% 554,386 121,565 2,903 3,318,461 518,556 11,343 4527214 - 4527214
Attributable to: BR:
University and Subsidiaries AERHEBAR 557,522 85,967 (41) 2873399 382,89 7,052 3,906,793 - 3,906,793
Associates BENF - - (13) 3,167 - 491 3,645 - 3,645
Balance as at 30 June 2010 2010968308 &8 557,522 85,967 (54) 2,876,566 382,894 7,543 3,910,438 - 3,910,438
Attributable to: BR:
University and Subsidiaries AERHEAR 554,386 121,565 2905 3318684 518556 11,343 4,527,439 - 4,527,439
Associates NG - - @) (223) - - (225) - (225)
Balance as at 30 June 2011 WIEGANELH 5438 121565 2903 3318461 518556 11343 4507214 4,521,214
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11 Other Funds (continued)
HiE S @

The University X2

General
and Self-
Development Matching financing Donations
Reserve Grant Activities and
Fund Scheme Fund  Benefactions Total
—MRER fir & BEEE BR
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L FH&Tar) FEES fpeta HEES &l Bt
Balance at 1 July 2009 20097 A 18 ## 520,644 141,836 1,920,780 344,216 2,927,476
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year REERR/
Transferred from Statement (F5E) e g
of Comprehensive Income 2EEER 36,937 (55,840) 356,730 41,724 379,551
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note 10) E&BR (ME10) = (29) (8,945) (3,046) (12,020)
Balance at 30 June 2010 201056 A30H & & 557,581 85,967 2,268,565 382,894 3,295,007
Balance at 1 July 2010 2010F 7R 1B &% 557,581 85,967 2,268,565 382,894 3,295,007
Surplus/(Deficit) for the Year REEZRLG/
Transferred from Statement (BB EEg
of Comprehensive Income 2HEKER (3,136) 41,442 328,446 140,035 506,787
Inter-Fund Transfers (Note 10) Eo®ER(K10) - (5,844) (8,308) (4,373) (18,525)
Balance at 30 June 2011 201196 3308 &k 554,445 121,565 2,588,703 518,556 3,783,269
(a) General and Development Reserve Fund

—RRBRFRES

The General and Development Reserve Fund (GDRF) represents the unspent funds carried over from one funding period (usually a
triennium) to the next to facilitate the University’s longer-term planning and new developmental needs. The balance of the GDRF at
the end of a funding period should not exceed 20% of the University’s approved Recurrent Grants other than the Earmarked Grants
for Specific Purposes for that funding period.

—RERBERFEESEREFARCEEA=FH)ADAMAAEE S —BFAMEABRREAINERNES - —REER
REESHRZEHRUABEZEZEE LMD E (FRAEZEEMBBERRINNEIZ =T RR -

(b) Matching Grant Scheme
BB 25T

The fund represents the unspent matching grants under the UGC Matching Grant Schemes. The first Matching Grant Scheme to award
UGC-funded institutions in securing private donations was introduced in 2003.

I ESEHESRUHD S THEYMAS B 2 FREHER - F—RREMB S EN2003FRE5|A - REESE TR
RENEGLABR - RESERK -
(c) Unrealised Investment Reserve
RERz2RERE
The Unrealised Investment Reserve represents the net changes in the fair value of available-for-sale securities held by the Group at the

end of the reporting period.
ARERZREBBARNBERBNFEAFANAHLER SN AN BENEEFE -
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11 Other Funds (continued)
HES @

(d) Self-financing Activities Fund
REEERBEES
Self-financing Activities Fund represents the reserves generated from self-financing programmes and activities.
BELERAESKEAZHBELENREREHMEZES -
(e) Donations and Benefactions
EEEONEEL

The Donations and Benefactions represent unspent donations and related investment income. The funds will be used in accordance
with donors’ wish, mainly for Student Support, Campus Development Projects and University's development.

BREBEEADAZBAREENRERA - L ESHRIEERE2ERER  TEREREIE REFZRAZRKER
BRERZE -

(f) Non-operating Reserves
FEERE B

Non-operating Reserves comprise exchange difference arising from translation of results of operations outside Hong Kong into Hong
Kong dollars and other reserves shared from associates of the Group.

FEERBRAEERARETERINEEZREREIRMELZELIBRRER 2 QR 2 Bt -

The details of Matching Grants, Matched Donations and their related expenditure are summarised below:

REHB S  SERHBREEABMXNFASERRNAT

2011 2010
Matching Matched Matching Matched
Grants Donations Grants Donations
fic B2 fic [
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XFHETat) Hmyge - REBXK ek [IRESEEE
Balance at the Beginning of the Year REG LR 85,967 183,751 141,836 161,261
Income KA

Donations/Grants B/ e 47,444 19,314 = 30,574
Interest and Investment Income FERIFERA 2,047 966 2,725 951
49,491 20,280 2,725 31,525

Expenditure and Transfers X REE
Academic Development BT R 1,753 1,626 54,095 956
Research Activities I IEE) 5,844 2,596 28 2,630
Student Activities B4R 658 867 472 530
Scholarships and Prizes RESRED 5,580 6,009 2,795 3,588
Bursaries PEg - 152 = 78
Equipment and Supplies B Rkt 52 - 321 =
Management & General BEER—MRIER 6 146 883 1,253
13,893 11,396 58,594 9,035
Balance at the End of the Year FERER 121,565 192,635 85,967 183,751
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The Group K22

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 55 S kBT R

12 Property, Plant and Equipment

Interests in
Leasehold Furniture,
Land Held for Machinery
Own Use under Construction Leasehold and
Operating Leases Buildings ~inProgress Improvements  Equipment Total
Mg E
- B AE A
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (W &L at) HE s RE  HRIE  MEEE EBSREN o
Cost: A
At 1 July 2009 200967 A1H 98,242 2,542,712 346,714 397,240 1,215,737 4,600,645
Exchange Adjustments IR = = 1,122 = 162 1,284
Additions ®E = = 528,737 13,316 87,095 629,148
Transfers B - - (58724) 58724 = =
Disposal of a Subsidiary HE—KBRA - - = = (146) (146)
Disposals BE - = = = (56,272)  (56,272)
At 30 June 2010 A2010F6H30H 98,242 2,542,712 817,849 469,280 1,246,576 5,174,659
At 1 July 2010 7201057/ 18 98,242 2,542,712 817,849 469,280 1,246,576 5,174,659
Exchange Adjustments b 5 F % - 2,366 1,672 - 534 4,572
Additions HE - 1,508 603,387 22,400 127,970 755,265
Transfers ER - 483,401  (501,196) 17,795 - -
Disposals P - - - - (24,306)  (24,306)
At 30 June 2011 201156 H30H 98,242 3,029,987 921,712 509,475 1,350,774 5,910,190
Accumulated Amortisation REHH
and Depreciation: RIFE :
At 1 July 2009 720097 A1H 13,559 930,846 = 257,902 1,000,243 2,202,550
Exchange Adjustments B 3¢, 38 B - - - - 161 161
Charge for the Year AEEHERTE 2,103 61,809 - 61,827 113,756 239,495
Disposal of a Subsidiary HE—HERR - - - = (94) (94)
Written Back on Disposal BIEE D = = = = (56,253)  (56,253)
At 30 June 2010 72010464308 15,662 992,655 - 319,729 1,057,813 2,385,859
At 1 July 2010 201067818 15,662 992,655 - 319,729 1,057,813 2,385,859
Exchange Adjustments AR - 29 - - 511 540
Charge for the Year AFEEHHERITE 2,103 74,696 - 61,325 127,511 265,635
Written Back on Disposal AR - - - - (24,242)  (24,242)
At 30 June 2011 M20119F6H30H 17,765 1,067,380 - 381,054 1,161,593 2,627,792
Net Book Value: MR T A
At 30 June 2011 M2011966H30H8 80,477 1,962,607 921,712 128,421 189,181 3,282,398
At 30 June 2010 72010F 67308 82,580 1,550,057 817,849 149,551 188,763 2,788,800
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

12 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Interests in
Leasehold Furniture,
Land Held for Machinery
Own Use under Construction Leasehold and
Operating Leases Buildings in Progress  Improvements Equipment Total
s EE
B BEEAN AE B
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X F&Tat) e RE  HEEIR  WEEE BRREN Fobs
Cost: |2
At 1 July 2009 72009F7A1H 98,243 2,542,712 286,528 367,337 1,183,322 4,478,142
Additions HE - - 509,773 13,316 86,809 609,898
Transfers 2324 - - (58,724) 58,724 = =
Disposals BE - - - - (55,096)  (55,096)
At 30 June 2010 7201046 A30H 98,243 2,542,712 737,577 439,377 1,215,035 5,032,944
At 1 July 2010 M2010F7A 18 98,243 2,542,712 737,577 439,377 1,215,035 5,032,944
Additions ZE - 1,509 590,750 22,400 126,431 741,090
Transfers e - 390,736  (408,531) 17,795 - -
Disposals B - - - - (23,392)  (23,392)
At 30 June 2011 72011496 A30H 98,243 2,934,957 919,796 479,572 1,318,074 5,750,642
Accumulated Amortisation ESit ©
and Depreciation: RiTE :
At 1 July 2009 72009 7H1H 13,560 930,846 — 231,248 968,487 2,144,141
Charge for the Year REFHHERNE 2,103 61,809 = 60,203 113317 237,432
Written Back on Disposal TBIE D - - - - (55,077) (55,077)
At 30 June 2010 72010F6H30H 15,663 992,655 - 291,451 1,026,727 2,326,496
At 1 July 2010 2010F7A1H 15,663 992,655 - 291,451 1,026,727 2,326,496
Charge for the Year REFHERINE 2,103 73,538 - 59,700 127,011 262,352
Written Back on Disposal g - - - - (23,328) (23,328)
At 30 June 2011 201196 H308 17,766 1,066,193 - 351,151 1,130,410 2,565,520
Net Book Value: R FHE ¢
At 30 June 2011 2011467308 80,477 1,868,764 919,796 128,421 187,664 3,185,122
At 30 June 2010 720106 A30H 82,580 1,550,057 737,577 147,926 188,308 2,706,448
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12 Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
RE - BRRFEHE@E

The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

MERRFFEITAT

The Group The University
ANEERE R
Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFHETar) liEza 2011 2010 2011 2010
In Hong Kong under Medium-term Leases &S HATHE (@ 1,949,241 1,632,637 1,949,241 1,632,637
Outside Hong Kong under BB
Medium-term Lease hEIFRE (b) 93,843 = - =
2,043,084 1,632,637 1,949,241 1,632,637
Representing: K&k :
Buildings carried at Cost less KR A REHTE
Accumulated Depreciation FIREI & 1,962,607 1,550,057 1,868,764 1,550,057
Interests in Leasehold Land held for D EHEREER
Own Use under Operating Leases MEE s 80,477 82,580 80,477 82,580
2,043,084 1,632,637 1,949,241 1,632,637

(@) The University's Kowloon Tong campus is situated in a land granted by the Government for usage by University at a nominal rent.

ARBURNAEENREMLEZEN LN TRAARBABSRLETFTABEER -

(b) The incubation-education-research building of the Group in Shenzhen is situated in a land granted by the Government of the
People’s Republic of China for usage by a subsidiary at a nominal fee.

REERUNRINOESHANBALZNTH  BPEARANMBBAAKBAERILE T RE-MBAREA -

112 Financial Statements City University of Hong Kong Annual Report 2010-2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

EHERE
The Group The University
RNEER AE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETEr) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Non-current ERE
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities BEIHz2EKES
Listed in Hong Kong wEBLET 55,952 55,988 55,952 55,988
Listed outside Hong Kong FEEBUINET 75,343 108,633 75,343 108,633
131,295 164,621 131,295 164,621
Unlisted JE LT 94,292 145,591 94,292 144,884
..225587 310212 225,587 309,505
Available-for-Sale Securities At HEES
Unlisted Equity Securities JE TR B 9703 301 - -
Other Equity Securities Hittfg 0% %
Unlisted ¥FEW® T 1 T
235,291 310,514 225,588 309,506
Current TE
Held-to-maturity Debt Securities BEIHZEKES
Listed outside Hong Kong FEEBAI LT 33,220 41,041 33,220 41,041
Unlisted kLM 244,724 100,345 244,724 100,345
L 277944 141,386 277,944 141,386
Trading Securities RBEH
Debt Securities BEEE S
Listed outside Hong Kong EBEBUINET 1,007,546 1,199,984 1,007,546 1,199,984
Unlisted JEET 717,038 500,505 717,038 500,505
1724584 1,700,489 1,724,584 1,700,489
Equity Securities IR 19 75 25
Listed in Hong Kong EEB LD 727,894 543,876 727,894 543,876
Listed outside Hong Kong BB ET 1,561,629 1,021,799 1,561,629 1,021,799
..2,289,523 1,565,675 2,289,523 1,565,675
Available-for-Sale Securities At ERES
Debt Securities BERE
Listed outside Hong Kong BB ET 1,925 2,440 - =
Unlisted JEET 413 401 - -
o....x338 28 - -
Equity Securities & 5 7 25
Listed outside Hong Kong EERBUIN ET 6,920 3,585 - =
Unlisted JEET 64 1,785 - -
... bosa 5370 ... - -
4,301,373 3,415,761 4,292,051 3,407,550
Total Investments in Securities BHEREHEHE 4,536,664 3,726,275 4,517,639 3,717,056
Fair Value of Held-to-maturity BRIz EEES
Debt Securities ZAREE 512,976 456,980 510,638 453,432
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14 Investments in Subsidiaries

MEBARRE

The University X2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (X FETat) 2011 2010
Capital Contribution less Impairment Losses BEREANKREEREEE 134,106 131,187
Unlisted Shares, at Cost FELETRG - B 800 800

134,906 131,987

The following list contains the particulars of the University’s subsidiaries. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(d) and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

IATHIRABHBARMFE - RRI2H  ARFE 2RO /T B -
IEH R/ FINDREENZRENBARYEFAEEABRENPBHRERA -

Place of Particulars of Issued Percentage of Issued and
Incorporation and  and Paid Up Capital/ Paid Up Capital/
Name of Company Operations Registered Capital Registered Capital held by Principal Activities
University  Subsidiary
BADETR
AL K EETREREL BRBRE/
NCIES REE BRA/ FMERFE HAMERZ AN, TEEH
RE i
CityU Enterprises Limited Hong Kong 80,010 shares of $10 each 100% - Investment Holding and Provision
of Management Services to
Group Companies
WALERBRAA &k FikmEE107T 2 K1780,0108% REEREBEEE A A RM
BB RY
CityU Professional Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of Consultancy Services
BAZEXBERARRF EE ARER REERRS
Community College of Hong Kong Limited by Guarantee 100% - Provision of Training and
City University Education Programmes
ERUTAZE L8 &k AR ER REIRRAERE
CityU Research Institute (Shenzhen)  People’s Republic  $96,850,000/$96,850,000 100% - Research and Development
Company Limited* of China
WA (RN BB LA REARLANE R R
CityU Research Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each 100% - Technology Licensing
WAHAERAA 9 EREE1TZRG 28 RilrE
CityU Consultants Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of $1 each - 100% Dormant
WAER AR AR e BREE1 TR 108 HE

* Not audited by KPMG.
FREFTH S EBHMEL -
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15 Interests in Associates

A NE L

The Group K288

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XFHETat) 2011 2010
Share of Net Assets EIEEEFE 1,309 10,756

The associates are private companies and principally operate in Hong Kong. The following list contains only the particulars of associates
which principally affected the results or assets of the Group.

BERRRLARE  TBEEEBBEE HABERNEEXNEEFTIEZENBERRMNFBIIRNT

Proportion of

Ownership
Place of Interest Held
Form of Incorporation by a Wholly
Name of Company Business Structure  and Operation Owned Subsidiary  Principal Activities
- 2 EEE
EE AR ST HB 2 R EA
NCIEEE! EBREBLR A B R R FTEXEK
DynaCity Technology (HK) Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong 25% Developing, Manufacturing and
Marketing of Advanced Motion
Controller/Driving Products
BB (FE)BERAR EANER BE e EERFEERED
BT S MRS Em R
MaCaPs International Limited* Incorporated Hong Kong 28.07% Provision of Product Development
and Consultancy Services
HABRAER AR TENE R EE 2 on 7 3 S A RS AR 7
* Not audited by KPMG.
FAREFHSAMEBHAER -
Summary Financial Information of Associates B& N\ BB I E R HE
Deficit
after
Assets  Liabilities Equity ~ Revenues Taxation
‘ ‘ BB
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFETat) BE A RE#E= & B8
2011 2011
100% 100% 7,557 (2,778) 4,779 57,264 (1,434)
Group's Effective Interest AEEENELE En 2,065 (756) 1,309 16,571 (240)
2010 2010
100% 100% 76,818 (37,982) 38,836 73,937 (6,591)
Group's Effective Interest AREEENEL #En 21,050 (10,294) 10,756 20,627 (1,953)
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16 Loans Receivable

W E K
The Group The University
REBEEE N
Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A & Tat) Fit &t 2011 2010 2011 2010
Loans to Subsidiaries — Unsecured WEBRARER — &K (a) - = 24,427 17,902
Loan to an Associate — Unsecured BENRER — EIEH - 1 - =
Loan to an Investee Company WIRERRER
— Unsecured — | 1 = - =
Staff Loans — Secured HHEER — AHEA (b) 86,880 83,180 86,880 83,180
86,891 83,191 111,307 101,082
Receivable after 1 Year: R1FE1E EUGRIE ¢
Loans to Subsidiaries — Unsecured WEBARER — &K - = 19,951 13,426
Loan to an Associate — Unsecured BN R ER — EEA - 11 - =
Loan to an Investee Company WHRERNRIER
— Unsecured — IR 11 = - =
R moo mo 19951 13,426
Receivable within 1 Year: PV A FERGRIA
Loan to Subsidiaries — Unsecured WEBRARER — &K - = 4,476 4,476
Staff Loans — Secured HBEER — GHEA 86,880 83,180 86,880 83,180
... 86880 83,180 91,356 87,656
86,891 83,191 111,307 101,082

(@) The University has granted two unsecured and interest-free loans to its subsidiaries as their working capital. The first loan is
repayable in 10 equal annual instalments commencing from July 2004. The outstanding loan balance at 30 June 2011 is
$13,427,000 (2010: $17,902,000). The second loan is repayable in 8 equal annual instalments commencing from October 2014.
The outstanding loan balance at 30 June 2011 is $11,000,000 (2010: nil).

AEBRENEEKFLECEERTHNBARBELEEEELES - F—FEEHRAE2004F7ARNI0FEFLH D HEE -
MR2011%6 308 @ ER&E#% 51,3428 7T (20104 : 1,79082F L) - E_FERAE2014F 10 A £ ASFEF 15 B
## ° 20115 6H308 » BER&# /51,1008 7T (20106 « £) »

(b) To qualify for a staff loan from the University, the applicant must be over 21 years of age and has been a staff member of
the University’s superannuation scheme for at least 4 years. The maximum amount of each staff loan is fixed at the lower of
$1,800,000 and 60% of the staff superannuation benefit entitlement. In the event of default on repayment, the University can
exercise its right to retain an amount equivalent to such indebtedness out of any amount due to the staff member, including
benefits payable from the superannuation scheme. The prevailing interest rate for staff loan is 2% below the Best Lending rate.

ARBHBEERNBRFALERERARBAMEHELBRIAFLFM2IRLBBE - BUERA LK ERER1808
TTHEEBABREMNZNK - MENBIERERE - MRERARENBEERE - KREATEEN - ZERAZH
BEMFA(BEAESEN) FMRZFR - R BB EERMNESZEENKBME

116 Financial Statements City University of Hong Kong Annual Report 2010-2011



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 85 AR BT R

17 Accounts Receivable, Prepayments and Others

PR IR TR ~ TR IR R H At

The Group The University
ANEEEEE N
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETEr) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Accounts Receivable JE W B SR 4,015 8,717 3,119 1,652
Prepayments, Deposits and TEAIR - R d
Other Receivables R L A JE USBR SR 102,059 110,221 96,983 105,510
Derivative Financial Instrument WBITETAERE 920 = - =
Amounts due from UGC R E IR 78,120 30,476 78,120 30,476
Amounts due from Subsidiaries FE U B B~ R R X - = 804 3,234
Others EAh 32 28 32 28
185,146 149,442 179,058 140,900
Less: Non-current Portion of R EURSR - A
Accounts Receivables, R 70 K E b Y
Prepayments and Others SERBEH (450) = - -
Current portion of Accounts Receivable, FEUIRER - TEATIRIX
Prepayments and Others R E A B 319 184,696 149,442 179,058 140,900

The amount of the Group’s and the University’s accounts receivable are expected to be recoverable within one year. Accounts
receivable are normally due within 30 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 29(a).

Prepayments are expected to be recognised as expenses within one year.

REBEB IR EYOIRFIGTEAE —FAME o BUIRK —RIZEE BR30RAZBHEF - KERENEEBRE R
29(a)A & -

AR RATE—FARR R

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are not considered to be impaired are as follows:

I A OB E B B WIR SRR IR ER DAT LA T -

The Group The University
RNEEE RE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Neither Past Due nor Impaired R EER R A £ E 643 2,953 555 441
Less than 1 Month Past Due ERHBELR1EAR 1,339 2,189 797 236
1 to 3 Months Past Due E@AEAE3MEA 1,409 2,520 1,279 629
Over 3 Months Past Due EBEE3EANR L 624 1,055 488 346
4,015 8,717 3,119 1,652

Accounts receivable that are not considered to be impaired relate to a number of independent debtors. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances.

A TEBIRE AN BUIRRY EELRERE  ERERBEELRARBAELRERKE L FE -
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18

19

Cash and Bank Deposits
HERBITHER
The Group The University
RNERR 7N
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFHBat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Deposits with Financial Institutions TSRS 2 17 3K 473,929 993,186 448,800 957,241
Cash at Banks and in Hand RITERKES 283,135 206,970 241,884 164,967
Cash and Bank Deposits shown in MERARIRE &
the Statement of Financial Position RITFER 757,064 1,200,156 690,684 1,122,208
Less: Time Deposits with Maturity BB =@ ABIHZ
over Three Months TE HATF 3R (388,302)  (521,897)  (388,302)  (521,897)
Cash and Cash Equivalents shown in BenRERMINFS R
the Cash Flow Statement REEEY 368,762 678,259 302,382 600,311
Deferred Income
IEIEU A
The Group The University
Nz RE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FHELat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Deferred Government Subventions (Note 19(a)) 15 % B /i 5 5K (3£ 19(a)) 269,621 237,637 269,315 237,340
Deferred Tuition Fees REEE 121,333 113,720 113,159 108,181
Other Deferred Income b EE U A 6,886 16,579 6,827 16,511
397,840 367,936 389,301 362,032
Current Portion TRENER D 397,790 367,877 389,301 362,032
Non-current Portion ERBZ D 50 59 - =
397,840 367,936 389,301 362,032
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19 Deferred Income (continued)

EIEWA ()
(a) Deferred Government Subventions
B FE BT 1S K
The Group KEZ2%E
Capital
Earmarked Other Grants &  Grants from
Research Earmarked ~ AA&IBlock  Government
Block Grants Grants Grants  Allocations Agencies Total
EATR
BRRYE -
M - # RE A
. G B RREIE  BRAR .
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (U FEit) ERER  HREX BEER BRER WER @5t
Balance at 1 July 2009 20095 7A 18 2 £ - 158,316 69,484 58,989 9,677 296,466
Subventions Received/Receivable YR U 2 BUR#R 1,260,082 76,941 78,880 153,570 38,692 1,608,165
Recognised as Income in the Year FABRRKA (1,136,020)  (100,461) (86,715) = (28,475)  (1,351,671)
Transfers to Deferred Capital Funds HBEEREARS (124,062) = = (190,628) (633)  (315,323)
Balance at 30 June 2010 201056 430 &t - 134,796 61,649 21,931 19,261 237,637
Balance at 1 July 2010 R201067 818 2 &8 - 134,796 61,649 21,931 19,261 237,637
Subventions Received/Receivable B e B M2 BT 3R 1,262,080 48,112 84,908 336,524 43592 1,775.216
Recognised as Income in the Year FREZBKA (1,151,066) (86,605) (76,772) (25) (36,394)  (1,350,862)
Transfers to Deferred Capital Funds BERETERESR (111,014) - (270)  (277,585) (3,501)  (392,370)
Balance at 30 June 2011 R201166A30R &% - 96,303 69,515 80,845 22,958 269,621
The University X2
Capital
Earmarked Other Grants &  Grants from
Research Earmarked ~ AA&IBlock  Government
Block Grants Grants Grants  Allocations Agencies Total
BEATRE
BRRME -
ME - #5 REEAM
o B Bt RMETR  HAAS
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (KU FEat) BERT REER BERR BEET MR @it
Balance at 1 July 2009 R200967 18 2 &% = 158,316 69,484 58,989 9,052 295,841
Subventions Received/Receivable B RN 2 BIRR 1,260,082 76,941 78,880 153,570 38251 1,607,724
Recognised as Income in the Year FRERBKA (1,136,020)  (100,461) (86,715) = (27,706)  (1,350,902)
Transfers to Deferred Capital Funds BERTERES (124,062) = = (190,628) (633)  (315,323)
Balance at 30 June 2010 R2010F6 4308 & - 134,796 61,649 21,931 18,964 237,340
Balance at 1 July 2010 R201067R18 2 #8 - 134,796 61,649 21,931 18,964 237,340
Subventions Received/Receivable B IR B 2 BUR AR 1,262,080 48,112 84,908 336,524 42,788 1,774,412
Recognised as Income in the Year FABRRKA (1,151,066) (86,605) (76,772) (25) (35,599)  (1,350,067)
Transfers to Deferred Capital Funds BEEREARS (111,014) - (270)  (277,585) (3,501)  (392,370)
Balance at 30 June 2011 201196 A301 & - 96,303 69,515 80,845 22,652 269,315
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20 Accounts Payable and Accruals

ARk ETER
The Group The University
RERGE RE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Creditors and Accruals FERTIRF R ERTE A 301,541 232,020 281,971 209,932
Retention Monies Payable ERRE S 61,367 50,733 61,154 50,733
Receipts in Advance TEWR IR 21,799 12,855 20,787 11,977
Amounts due to UGC EN#E® 2 FE 222,699 194,779 222,699 194,779
Amounts due to Subsidiaries ENME AR 2 HIE - = 747,335 610,543

607,406 490,387 1,333,946 1,077,964

All accounts payable and accruals (including Amounts due to Subsidiaries) are expected to be settled or recognised as income within
one year or are repayable on demand.

AR R EFER (BREENMEARZFR) GBRME - FRASRERE N HERBEA

21 Provision for Employee Benefits

EEREAEE
The Group The University
RExmee KR8
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFH&Tat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Salaries N 36,327 15,007 36,327 15,007
Provision for Untaken Leave Balances REUERHA 45 eR A 315,320 296,691 311,023 292,115
Other Employee Benefits i = =F =R 64,397 60,313 63,913 59,818
416,044 372,011 411,263 366,940
Payable: FEATFRIA ¢
Within 1 year M FEAZA 390,575 350,507 385,794 345,436
After 1 year M1EFEE I 25,469 21,504 25,469 21,504

416,044 372,011 411,263 366,940
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22 Employee Retirement Benefits
SR IKER
The Group operates two approved retirement schemes for its employees: City University of Hong Kong Superannuation Scheme B

(1998) (the Superannuation Scheme) under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (ORSO) and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the MPF Scheme) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Superannuation Scheme established under a Trust Deed on 29 May 1998 between the University and the Trustees, is a defined
contribution scheme in nature. However, the Scheme has been registered under the ORSO as a defined benefit scheme due to

the provision for minimum death and disability benefits covered by an insurance policy. The University’s and all scheme members’
contributions are unified to calculate at 15% and 5% respectively, of the employees’ salaries.

The University and its subsidiaries operate the MPF Scheme for employees not covered by the Superannuation Scheme. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ salaries, subject to a cap of
monthly salary of $20,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

AEBEELESREMIERANRNRTE - BIE (BERKRTEIEH) SMOBTBRTARERES 2518(1998) (A& )
RZRBES CEHERABETEES) R MBI AEEHTE (RESTE) -

AHEESHERKEBEZ T ARBETLZOMNI1998F5A20RERN —BRTHERMELTE - At RBRER AT RIERE
ERTE TR - MAGTEERE CBRERNRGTEGS) M A —HATREFRKEE - RERFASNKENERD RIS —AES
HFHEH15%K%5% °

AERENBRARAITZAESHERENREES @ [UBRBESHE - ARBSTER —ARTREERARTSE  ABINZTEA
EE - RIFBRESHE  EXANEESERRBEEHBEABNS%RAEELER  BEFANBEAR LR A2ET - MBES
SERRERENREK AT EERF -

The contributions made and outstanding contributions to be made under the retirement schemes by the Group and the University
during the year are as follows:

REBERRABFEARBRRGTEHRSELRAT

The Group The University
NEREE N
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETE) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Contributions to Defined Contribution ATEHFERAKETE
Retirement Scheme K 148,322 147,593 144,971 144,355

As at 30 June 2011, the outstanding contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes for the Group and the University were
$3,935,000 (2010: $3,955,000) and $3,462,000 (2010: $3,494,000) respectively.

M20115F6 308 «+ REEB R RERBENNAERTENRFTEIFNH S B A393F5F 7L (20104 : 39585F70) k3468 2F T
(20104F : 3498 4T ) °
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23 Loans and Borrowings

ENKREE
The Group and the University
REEERAZ
Note
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFETat) Wit s 2011 2010
Bank Loan — Unsecured RITER — MK @) 37,240 37,240
Government Loans — Secured BFER — BEH (b) 496,182 529,055
533,422 566,295
Repayable: BERIE :
Within 1 year or on demand MERERESARERERE 000000 70,113 70,113
After 1 year but within 2 years P ERE2FRNEE 32,873 32,873
After 2 years but within 5 years R2FRBSFAERE 89,668 94,143
After 5 years REFBER 340,768 369,166
... 463309 496,182
533,422 566,295

(@) The unsecured bank loan of $37,240,000 (2010: $37,240,000) raised for on-lending to qualified staff members of the University
bears interest at 2% below the Best Lending rate. Subject to renewal, the loan is repayable within 12 months.

RETHRAERORNER B MR EEIRIRITER3,724870(2010%F : 37248 70) RENKEEF L 2% EHME - BT E
HARED - LWERAR12EARNEE -

(b) The secured Government loans composed of two interest-free loans granted by Government of HKSAR for the provision of
self-financing associate degree programmes. The first loan of $44,756,000 is secured by a charge over certificates of deposit
with equivalent face value, and is originally repayable in 10 equal annual instalments commencing from July 2004. As at 30 June
2011, the outstanding loan balance is $13,427,000 (2010: $17,902,000). Another loan of $599,500,000 for the construction of
Academic 2 Building is secured by the University’'s property with a net book value of $67,382,000 at 30 June 2011, a medium term
note of US$6,500,000 and assignment of receivables from a subsidiary. The loan has been fully drawn down in April 2008 and
is repayable in 10 equal annual instalments commencing from April 2009. The repayment period of the loan was extended to
20 years in September 2009 and become repayable in 19 equal instalments as the 1st instalment of the loan has been repaid.
As at 30 June 2011, the outstanding loan balance is $482,755,000 (2010: $511,153,000).

EEARFEREEMEREABERNMEELAEARNIBLEMNRBEZREER - HEEBEN4,47586 T TURE
HEZFREERT - WEE2004F7ARAI10FFHH H#E - R2011F6A30H - AREREHRBE1,34287T
(20104 : 1,790&2F JT) - 3 —%5/89,9508 T AEE g (Z )M EREUE2011F6 308 IR /FE6,73882F T
MABYE  EESOEXTHHHEEL —MWBRAMEIRIRKIEARIF - ZZ BN E2008F4A 2 HRBL AL
2009FFA B FHIA A0 FH D HIEIE - WERZEEBHAE2009F A AR Z206F HRNE—HERDERE - 25
19F 55 B#E - 1R2011F6A308 © MR B A4ES 2758 5T L (20104 : 5{81,11583F 7T) °
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24 Deferred Capital Funds

The Group and The University
N3 YUN-
Furniture,
Machinery
Construction Leasehold and
Buildings In Progress Improvements  Equipment Total
‘ HE G-
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L FBTar) BE TEEIRR MEERE BEREM et
Balance at 1 July 2009 20097418 1,365,616 158,391 127,448 211,570 1,863,025
Transfers from Deferred Income BEEETWA = 218,146 12,743 84,434 315,323
Transfers B - (58,724) 58,724 = =
Release to Statement of BEESME
Comprehensive Income =R (53,022) - (57,540) (111,275) (221,837)
Balance at 30 June 2010 720106 A30H 1,312,594 317,813 141,375 184,729 1,956,511
Balance at 1 July 2010 R2010F7A1H 1,312,594 317,813 141,375 184,729 1,956,511
Transfers from Deferred Income BEERTERA 1,845 246,307 10,456 133,652 392,260
Transfers 324 343,421 (361,216) 17,795 - -
Release to Statement of BEE2ME
Comprehensive Income ol (63,369) - (54,937) (135,080) (253,386)
Balance at 30 June 2011 12011967308 1,594,491 202,904 114,689 183,301 2,095,385

25 Related Party Transactions
B R S

All transactions relating to the purchase of goods and services and capital projects involving organisations in which a member of the
University Council, key management personnel and directors of subsidiaries may have an interest are conducted during the normal
course of business and in accordance with the University’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures.

All donations and gifts from members of the University Council, key management personnel, directors of subsidiaries and companies
controlled or significantly influenced by them, are conducted in accordance with the normal processes and procedures for acceptance
of donations as prescribed by the University.

FEMRBEERNMBRBERIRBAENRS  BREEAZREGKE  FE2EBABLKMNBARAEEANRNBENRS -
HBEREBEFELERRBRBOMBHRA LA EERKBEF TET -

FIERARSEREGNE  TE2EBABLMBAREEAREREAREEATENRANBREME - HUKXBEEEENIB
BEE) A2 Fr IEFBRIR o

Key Management Personnel Remuneration

TEEBAEME

The University has paid remuneration to the key management personnel. Their gross remuneration is summarised as follows:
REBEMFTEEBASIAME  EMe@ERRET

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (AFETaEt) 2011 2010
Short-term Employee Benefits EHESREA 39,847 35,280
Post-employment Benefits RIRER 5,351 4,807

45,198 40,087

The above remuneration is included in “Staff Costs and Benefits” (See note 8).

Details of the Group’s and the University’s approved retirement schemes are set out in note 22.

b efE [ BREFMEENFEX | A(RMHES)

ARBERBRABRA SRR EIF BRI N E22R
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26 Capital Commitments

BRI
Capital commitments outstanding at 30 June 2011 not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

M2011F6 A308 « RIEMBHRE LIRBEHERAENT -

The Group The University
KEaFE g RE&
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFE&Tat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Contracted for BED 872,082 724,378 867,459 716,982

There is no capital commitment authorized but not contracted for at 30 June 2010 and 2011 for the Group and the University.
RNEREE R AER2010F 2201146 A308 WA B #EERFLH) E AR -

27 Operating Lease Commitments and Charges

REBERBRAX

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases at 30 June 2011 and charges on operating leases for the
year were:

R201156A30R @ RETHBEENKLAEEARENNKEEEAEINFANKERERNR

The Group The University
RNERE RNE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAF&Tat) 2011 2010 2011 2010
Payable: FEATFRIA ¢
Within 1 year P1ERZ A 42,259 37,885 30,137 26,152
After 1 year but within 5 years 1 FEZBSF A 72,668 37,514 49,675 35,219
After 5 years NG SN 29,087 - 29,087 =
144,014 75,399 108,899 61,371
Charges on Operating Leases for KEEMEZ
Buildings for the year KERERS 49,719 48,532 37,882 37,221

The Group and the University are the lessees in respect of a number of properties held under operating leases. Two of the leases run
for an initial period of three years, with an option to renew two extended terms for four and five years respectively. Lease payments
are increased after the expiration of each term to reflect the market rent. Apart from the above two leases, other leases typically

run for period of one to nine years and the lease payments are fixed throughout the rental period. None of the leases includes
contingent rental.

ARBERBIABEZANKEAERALANENEESE - AhEMARENEERARBA=F  WHREREREHND 5
ENFRRAF - HEXHESERBER RS SEINARKRTIZEAE - FREMBEHEEN  HONBENHERBE R —FENF
g MEZHERFNHEEXHIREEN  -EZSHET T ERELEES
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28 Capital Management
EAEHE
The University is a higher education institution funded by government through UGC. It is established under the laws of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, which objects are to provide for studies, training and research and development in technology,
engineering, science, commerce, arts and other subjects of learning. The University is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements and its activities are mainly funded by government grants and tuition fees. The use of UGC funds are governed by the
UGC Notes on Procedures and other grant conditions. The University’s activities are also funded by donations and income generated
from self-financing activities and other income.

The primiary objectives of the University’s subsidiaries when managing capital are to safeguard the entities’ ability to continue as a
going concern. They are not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The subsidiaries’ capital structure and management
policies are regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital management practices of the University.

The Restricted Fund and Other Funds of the Group and the University represent the unspent balance of government subventions,
tuition fees, donations and funds earmarked for specific purposes. These funds are managed according to the relevant grant and
funding conditions, where applicable, and the University’s investment and financial management guidelines and procedures in meeting
the Group’s and the University’s objectives.

ABR—FHBNEBRESEPNSEHEER - RERREBEBERITREEAMMAY - EREZRMHBK - T2
BR - B XRREMBROTHE  JIRRARMER o  REYBEZFSNBMNEAZR  ERXBEHHEE T EHEUT
BYRBEN  MERBESRFFZIHESRFEERAMBETGMHMRR - REEHNKETRBHLREELEEHH
LONCEL N ONSE &

RENMBLRINEAERNEABNERES A REAEESEEE - MY EIIIMNBMNEAREZR - MAFANERE
BRERBRREARAZNERAETEREMERELRALER -

ARBERBIASBNEAREMESABNEN 28  BRREMERERNRBNRERGEYR - ELESRRABNBTIE
fOER) RABNRERMBERTAREFER  UTAXRBEEBRAENERE
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29

(a)

Financial Risk Management
T mhE e T

Financial instruments of the Group include bank deposits, debt securities, equities, investments held by fund managers, loans and
accounts receivables, accounts payables, loans and borrowings which have exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, foreign currency
and equity price risks arising in the normal course of the Group’s operations. These risks are limited by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

AREEENSRTABERTER  BBES BE FRARBLENRKRE  BURERKBRIER - BRER  BERRE
& AENER  RBEER  MEX HNEREZEREROEASERATZTLERETES - RBERF TN BEERK
RERBFREELERE

Credit Risk
FEERR

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to investments, loans receivable and accounts receivable.

The Group’s major investments include bank deposits, debt securities, equities managed internally and funds placed with external
professional portfolio managers. Risk control is carried out under the investment guidelines approved by the Finance Committee
under the Council. Risk control is achieved through asset diversification, rules governing the selection and credit limit of investment
counterparties with reference to their credit ratings and financial strength and investment guidelines covering the investment
limitations, asset allocation and performance measurement imposed for each portfolio manager. On-going monitoring and review
of investment strategies and performance are carried out to ensure that the investment objectives and performance targets are met.

In respect of loans receivable and accounts receivable, regular reviews and follow-up actions are carried out on over-due amounts
to minimise exposure to credit risk. The Group and the University have no concentration of credit risk in view of its large number of
debtors.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position. The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
REEBAHNEERREIERARE  BRERRERIIRK -

ABERIZNREABEBRAEENRITER  EBES  BREFSRERERIINEXESLENES - BREETIRER
EeBETHUBRLZBEmENKRETHNT - AREERERE : BEZ L  2ZRRETNEEFR RV BEEN KT E
WERRHEENEERD  BREREKEESENREDHARNEANESLBORBIELITR - HRERBKLERRG#E
TRHESERER  URREERNKEBNERRARE -

ERRERREWIRASE  ARBRFRETESYRELBHBNNIRT - BEARNEERARBRERE - AREB AR
BRE  RBEERABIWRAEEHTHNEERR

RANEERRABUBRAKRTMIIENERMBEESR - ABPEBYRFHENEMEREASEREAZEMEERR -
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29 Financial Risk Management (continued)
T b e B o)

(b) Liquidity Risk
MENE € E

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet payment obligations, the Group closely monitors its current and expected cash demands arisen
from all liabilities and borrowings. The Group maintains sufficient cash and bank deposits to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

Based on the cash flow analysis, the Group manages its liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash requirements and monitoring
the working capital to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding requirements can be met.
RERBRANTBDESUAIMIRIE  AEERBEEHERAZRHLBAENRABEREEMELENRETR - ABEBRA
RHANBR S RRITERAABNEHAREHN B ESEL -

BERERENDN  AEERBZEFEERCFTLNEREELEEHNKTREERDES AR - URARMEIHANEE
REMOE ©HREBE A »

The following table presents the earliest settlement dates of the Group’s and the University’s financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period:

LT —BRIEARERERAENEE R ZERKFTAXMNBEE

The Group K22 %88
2011

More than ~ More than
Within 1 Yearbut 2 Years but

1 Year or Less than Less than 5 Years Carrying
on Demand 2 Years 5Years  and More Total Amount

1ER K T E 2PN E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (U FETat) ARERER BIR2F  BIRSFE SFERNE @i RESE
Accounts Payable and Accruals IR R R ERTE B 607,406 - - - 607,406 607,406
Provision for Employee Benefits EERFIEE 390,575 25,469 - - 416,044 416,044
Loans and Borrowings ENREE 70,113 32,873 89,668 340,768 533,422 533,422

1,068,094 58,342 89,668 340,768 1,556,872 1,556,872

2010

More than ~ More than
Within 1 Yearbut 2 Years but

1 Year or Less than Less than 5 Years Carrying
on Demand 2 Years 5Years  and More Total Amount

1EA K 1E A+ 26 E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LFETat) BRERER BIR2FE BIRSFE SERNME o EE®E
Accounts Payable and Accruals BRI REFTER 490,387 = = - 490,387 490,387
Provision for Employee Benefits EERNBE 350,507 21,504 - - 372,011 372,011
Tax Payable PR 105 = = = 105 105
Loans and Borrowings ERREE 70,113 32,873 94,143 369,166 566,295 566,295

911,112 54,377 94,143 369,166 1,428,798 1,428,798
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29 Financial Risk Management (continued)

(b)

SREREE @)

Liquidity Risk (continued)
RBESRERE @)

The University K2

2011

More than ~ More than

Within 1 Yearbut 2 Years but
1 Year or Less than Less than 5 Years Carrying
on Demand 2 Years 5Years  and More Total Amount

TN R 16 £ 26D E
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (XFETat) BRERER BIRE  BIRSFE SFERME @it REEHE
Accounts Payable and Accruals ERIRRRESER 1,333,946 - - - 1,333946 1,333,946
Provision for Employee Benefits EERAEE 385,794 25,469 - - 411,263 411,263
Loans and Borrowings ERREE 70,113 32,873 89,668 340,768 533,422 533,422
1,789,853 58,342 89,668 340,768 2,278,631 2,278,631

2010

More than ~ More than

Within 1 Yearbut 2 Years but
1 Year or Less than Less than 5 Years Carrying
on Demand 2 Years 5Years  and More Total Amount

1EAR  1FNRE 2FNE
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (L FETat) ERERER BLR2FE  BORSE  SFERNE mrr RESE
Accounts Payable and Accruals [ERTIRF R e & A 1,077,964 - - - 1,077,964 1,077,964
Provision for Employee Benefits EERFIEE 345,436 21,504 - - 366,940 366,940
Tax Payable e 58 = = = 58 58
Loans and Borrowings ENREE 70,113 32,873 94,143 369,166 566,295 566,295
1,493,571 54,377 94,143 369,166 2,011,257 2,011,257
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29 Financial Risk Management (continued)
SREREE @\

(c) Interest Rate Risk
FI == B B

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk since the Group has significant interest-bearing financial assets. The Group manages its
exposure to interest rate risk through diversifying its funds into a variety of fixed and floating rate instruments with various tenures.

The Group's interest-bearing financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are not significant. The Group does not expect short-
term fluctuations in market interest rates that will have a significant impact to the Group's results of operations.

HRASEEFREATRDANSHNEHEE  AUARBEBAIMNXER KAEERBEBKEES TLHREETRAERLS
BETARFHNEERFBHMETA - EREARNFEER

ABBENGEERAYSAEANTESHMEBE ASEBRAMSHNENERRPLITEHABREREBNLBERBREAD
2

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s and the University’s investments in interest-bearing financial assets at
the end of the reporting period:

AT —BRIHASBEERABREERIRRANBRAZEREE :

The Group KE2%g2

(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A F#ETE) 2011 2010
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate Amount
BRA = MR & 28 BRI WRE & 58
% %
Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits EEEBRIFR 2.4% 977,460 1.7% 1,444,784
Floating Rate Notes and Deposits FEERRIFR 0.1% 47,088 0.1% 45,574
Total #Et 1,024,548 1.7% 1,490,358
Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits EEEBRIFR
as a percentage of 16 LABREURL2
Total Interest-bearing WA B8 5 7h
Financial Assets BEMNLE 95% 97%
The University X2
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (A FETE) 2011 2010
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate Amount
BB F = WRE R BRRA = MR & R
% %
Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits EREBRREFR 2.2% 952,331 15% 1,408,132
Floating Rate Notes and Deposits FEEBRIFR 0.1% 19,033 0.1% 16,173
Total FEE 971,364 1.4% 1,424,305
Fixed Rate Notes and Deposits EEEBRRFR
as a percentage of 1 AR ER A 2
Total Interest-bearing WA B 48 5 7
Financial Assets BEMNE 98% 99%
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(o]

(d)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
T mhE e B o)

Interest Rate Risk (continued)
FI = [EL B ()

Sensitivity Analysis

BRED T

As at 30 June 2011, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 10 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group and the University’s surplus by approximately $47,000 (2010: $46,000) and
$19,000 (2010: $16,000) respectively.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for investments in floating rate financial assets in existence at that
date. The Group may expose to interest rate risk indirectly via its holding in the investment portfolios which hold debt instruments.
Increase/Decrease in investment income from these investment portfolios arising from interest rate change however are not considered
in the sensitivity analysis above due to insufficient information provided by fund managers. The 10 basis points increase/decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until next annual end of the
reporting period. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.

M2011F6 300 - BEMBEMUEBHEE RFTE - WHEIGINI10B T REEBRAERFANZHKRD RISIZNO4E
7F 7T (20104 : 48 6T L) R1EB9T L (20104 : 1&E6TT) °

FHRBEESTNAERIANENEGRNEEREE  TEARAZEENZANZIESREENMASINIERR - ARE
SEBRERHERAEN  WAMNEREHMBZSHREAEEEZRERENE @ ARARERNU LNSERESITH - #in/
W10 FRIEEEEHEEZ MAFEARA ILABF RN SRR e ZBHTE o DITITIA2010F R —mEEH#TT o

Foreign Currency Risk
SN L B

The Group primarily conducts its operation in Hong Kong with its transactions substantially denominated in Hong Kong Dollars (HKD).
The Group is exposed to the currency risk primarily from deposits and investment portfolios that are denominated in other currencies.
As HKD is currently pegged to United State Dollars (USD), the Group considers risk of movements in exchange rates between the HKD
and USD to be insignificant.

In respect of investment portfolios denominated in other currencies, the Group controls its exposure to foreign currency risk by limiting
the currency exposure to non Hong Kong dollar currencies as stipulated in the investment guidelines.

AREEBIZEETBEE MAEBENRISBENTIENETREAEEE - AEEBAXNIINERAREIZREUINERETEE
WERREEES - BEBITAREETHE  RERBRAR/BTEETERS L 2RARTIK -

BRAEMIINEEZIRE - AEEBFBRNREFHARENIFBTEBRERREMEAZNINER R

As at 30 June 2011, the percentage of financial assets denominated in currencies other than HKD or USD to total financial assets of the
Group and the University is 22% (2010: 15%) and 23% (2010: 16%) respectively. Details are as follows:

R2011F6H308 » REZBERAZLUBTHETLUIINTENEREED LB SEEE22%(2010F  15%) %23% (20104 :
16%) ° FEBRINAT :

The Group The University
NEEE RNE
2011 2010 2011 2010
Japanese Yen =] 2% 3% 2% 4%
Korean Won e 4% 2% 4% 3%
New Taiwan Dollars e 4% 3% 5% 3%
Euros BT 2% 1% 2% 1%
Sterlings B 1% 1% 1% 1%
Others H 9% 5% 9% 4%
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29 Financial Risk Management (continued)
T b e B o)

(e) Equity Price Risk
IR B E b
The Group is exposed to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will increase/decrease if equity prices change. In respect

of investment portfolios for investing in equity securities, the Group controls its exposure to equity price risk through diversifying the
portfolios in terms of asset classes and geographical areas in accordance with the limits as stipulated in the investment guidelines.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 5% higher/lower, with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s and the University’s surplus for the year would have increased/decreased by $114,822,000
(2010: $78,463,000) and $114,476,000 (2010: $78,284,000) respectively as a result of the changes in fair value of listed
equity securities.

RELKENBESHERZEEREEM LA/ TH  BURASBERAZZRZEREAR - ARANREROESHNREMES -
AEBBERBREFHARENEEMER MR D MGERMAAZNREERRR

WEER - EREMNER LA/ THS%  EHM— A ZERHERTENERT  REEBRAZRFANRAS  §R LM
REFFHAABEZE - HRBEMN/ B 11E1,48282F 7T (20105 : 7,84683F 7t) R 1181,44786F L (20104 : 7,8288
4F7T) -

The Group’s and the University’s listed equity investments are traded in the following regions’ stock markets:

REBEBRAEN FTRERTIIMRNRETISEE :

The Group and the University

AREBRERKE

2011 2010
Hong Kong B 21% 21%
Japan =N 4% 10%
China i 18% 16%
Rest of Asia-Pacific Hfhgn K= 40% 33%
North America JEZEM 10% 1%
Others HAth 7% 9%

(f) Fair Values
AREE

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

BEARBEIKRNERTA

The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement.
The levels are defined as follows:

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financial instruments

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable market data

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any significant input is not based on observable market data
TRIBEBEEBMBRELENEIR @RI E : KB MAEHN=ZE2AEBERS  JIHUARABEIIRNER T AREH
PAN

BRIREE SRR TANAABELOEERBEHAABEGAEEFEAFENRERABBETIE - ZERFINAA
BESEDT

FHN —AABENMBREBTAEERTSTORE (T TRARE)FE

BH2 — AABENEUSRTAEERMSTORE  KAGERM(EFMEAEZHAT A EEKHERAATEED
BEIR)FE
BRI — ARBEMEERN (Eh - LE2HAWFRAATERTISER)FHE
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29 Financial Risk Management (continued)
TR R EE m)

(f) Fair Values (continued)
ANAREEE)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

BARBEIKRNESHT A (5)

2011
The Group The University
RERE RE
Level One  Level Two Level Three Total  Level One  Level Two Total
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA & T 4t) Al & 502 A3 aE FAl & 512 k]
Trading Securities R5EHR
Listed Em 3,206,335 90,734 - 3,297,069 3,206,335 90,734 3,297,069
Unlisted FEH - 717,038 - 717,038 - 717,038 717,038
Available-for-Sale Securities AHEES
Listed =] 8,845 - - 8,845 - - -
Unlisted FEm - 477 9,703 10,180 - - -
3,215,180 808,249 9,703 4,033,132 3,206,335 807,772 4,014,107
2010
The Group The University
REEE RE
Level One  Level Two Level Three Total  Level One  Level Two Total
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LA F#Tat) Al & A2 A3 k] HAl H 512 k]
Trading Securities RH5HEH
Listed Em 2,690,112 75,547 - 2,765,659 2,690,112 75,547 2,765,659
Unlisted ¥Em = 500,505 = 500,505 = 500,505 500,505
Available-for-Sale Securities ATt E 7
Listed Em 6,025 = = 6,025 - - -
Unlisted LT - - 2,487 2,487 = = =
2,696,137 576,052 2,487 3,274,676 2,690,112 576,052 3,266,164

During the year, there were no transfers between instruments in Level 1 to 3.

FA - RBINERFZ 2 EE S BT A M o

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair value

FEQNABEIRNEMT A
All financial instruments were carried at amounts not materially different from their fair values as at 30 June 2010 and 2011.

A4 R T B9IRE2010F K2011E6 A30B AR BETEEAERINL IR -
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30 Disposal of a Subsidiary

HE—MEAF

There is no disposal of subsidiary during the year. During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group disposed of 51% interest in ChiLin
(HK) Limited. The net assets of the subsidiary disposed of were as follows:

FRIEEHEWB AT - HE2010F6A30HILFRN » REXEEE HELERB(E8)ERAFMN51%ER - SWEHEHNHNE

NAKFEER
(In thousands of Hong Kong dollars) (LAFETat) 2010
Net Assets disposed of: HENEERE:
Non-current Assets EMEEE 52
Current Assets MENAE 27
Cash and Bank Balances W& RRITEER 788
Current Liabilities mENAfE (24)
Net Identifiable Assets AIEREFEE 843
Net Identifiable Assets 5B AN 2R EEH) A R

attributable to the Group FEE 430
Exchange reserve realised upon S MR A B IR A

disposal of Subsidiary FE 5 (19)
Loss on disposal of Subsidiary KB A EH EE (385)
Total consideration BRE 26
Satisfied by: XNFEE:
Cash Re 26
Analysis of Net Cash Outflow in respect HE-HEARNRSRE

of Disposal of a Subsidiary: REND N
Cash and Bank Balances Disposed HERE RIRITE (788)
Cash Contribution Received BUIR S RE 26
Net Cash Outflow on Disposal of a Subsidiary PE—KBARNERS L FE (762)

FEBHMAL 2010-2011 3§ BHE 133



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 55 S kBT R

31

32

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

SRHEE R M

The Group's property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, after taking

into account their estimated residual value. The Group determines the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets based on
historical actual usage experience, maintenance and replacement policy. Management reviews the useful lives of assets annually, and if
expectations are significantly different from previous estimates of useful economic lives, the useful lives and, therefore, the depreciation
rate for the future periods will be adjusted accordingly.

Note 29 contains information about the assumptions and their risk relating to financial instruments.
ARBEBORE  HBSLRBEREEFAICAFRAEZEBIRERERENE - AREBKBBEERERER  #EBR

FHMERMAFTHEEN A ERFRMIAAREEL AL - ERERFRIBEENBFR - MRAENAREZEE IR AENA
RERMGE - AIMAFERAEREAMOFTET RS AL —GHE -

MiFE290IE A B TAMNMRRMERNER -

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and Interpretations Issued but Not Yet Effective for
the Year Ended 30 June 2011

BZE2011F6A300 L FEEEMERERNER ~ T EARREAJRELENTE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, interpretations and one new

standard which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2011 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the Group and the University.

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures 1 January 2011
Amendment to HKAS 12 Income taxes 1 January 2012

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it is not yet in a position to state whether these amendments, new interpretations and the new standard would have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

BEAPBHRRELR  BEEAMAGRMGETIER  RER LD - ZFEF] I EIRBRERBE201156A
30REFEMNRER - BNRERMBRRFS - EPBRARERSERIARSEEHN TIIEL

KT AR ERFABN ST FEER

BB GETAERZFE 2458 (KLHERT) BEATZHE 201141 A1H
BB ERIFE 125185 Fris i 2012461818

ANEBERIEFAER - AR MRENTE  EUEBOREMRMNER] - B R Rl et HELBERMP BN
WBRERTEMIEL W o
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